
            
 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

                           BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

August 15, 2024 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

   
OPEN SESSION: 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 
placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for July 18, 2024 

B. Receive and Ratify the Check Warrant Lists through August 5, 2024 

C. Approve Board Compensation for July 2024 

D. Approve Murray attending Wastewater Operation Basics Certification on August 13 at  

Sea Ranch, CA. 

E. Approve Award of Contract Kennedy Jenks Integrated Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP) Phase 3 
Amendment 2. 

 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through E.  

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through E. 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. Marin Sanitary Service Annual Report – written   

2. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

 

4:15 PM 
 

4:00 PM 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:05 PM 
 
 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


August 15,  2024 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

 

 

3. Administrative Services Department Report – written 

4. Quarterly Financial Report – written 

5. Solar Project Update – verbal 

6. Board Policy Review - Purchasing F-90,  Credit Cards F-100, Grant Management F-150 and Fixed 
Asset Accounting Controls O-10 – written 

 

4. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:  

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, 
 CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports  
 

2. MURRAY 
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,  

 Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,  
 Other Reports 

 
3. NITZBERG 

a. Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  
Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee 
San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

 
4. ROBARDS 

a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE, 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
 FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 
 

5. YEZMAN 
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE, 

                          Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  
              Other Reports 

5. BOARD REQUESTS: 
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

6. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 

 

6:15 PM 
 
 
 
 

6:30  PM 
 
 

6:20 PM 
 
 
 
 

6:00 PM 
 

2



August 15,  2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS SEPTEMBER 5 AND SEPTEMBER 19, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before August 12, 2024 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on August 15, 2024 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: August 12, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 

Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting.

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson  Legal Counsel 

3



 

 
 

 

8/15/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 

 

 Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: August 15, 2024 

Re: Kennedy Jenks Contract Amendment 2 for IWMP Phase 3 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Contract Amendment 2 with Kennedy Jenks for Integrated Wastewater Master 
Plan (IWMP) Phase 3 in the amount $302,350. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In December 2019, the District awarded Kennedy Jenks a contract to develop a risk-based 
master plan for the treatment plant, collections system, and reclamation area. The objective was 
to develop a comprehensive roadmap of future improvements with defensible cost estimates, 
which the District would use for future rate study and fiscal year CIP budgeting. Kennedy Jenks 
has completed Phase 1 and Phase 2 and submitted the following deliverables to the District: 
 

• Phase 1: Business Risk Vulnerability Assessment (BRVA) 
o Preliminary assessment of risks for the Collection System, Treatment Plant, Climate 

Change, Physical and Digital Security, including Asset Management Program 
o Heat Map  

• Phase 2: Detailed Assessments 
o More risk-based analysis of Phase 1 assets including Risk Mitigation Solutions, 

Miller Creek Management, Disaster Resilience Assessment, Land Management and 
Optimization.  

 
In response to staff request, Kennedy Jenks submitted a proposal for Phase 3 in the amount of 
$302,350. The scope includes: 
 

• Capacity & Hydraulic Analysis 

• Deferred Phase 2 IWMP Elements, such as:  
o Biosolids Management Facilities Assessment 
o Climate Change and Sea Level Rise (SLR) Assessment by ESA 
o Physical and Digital Security Assessment by West Yost 
o Miller Creek Flood, SLR Adaptation, and Maintenance Management 
o Energy Management by Alternative Energy System Consulting (AESC) 

 
The overall objective of Phase 3 is to develop a 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
consisting of tentatively 24 CIP projects based on findings and recommendations from Phases 1 
and 2 and parallel studies by the following contributing consultants:  

Item Number_______2E___________ 

GM Review   _____CP_____________ 

 

33

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

• Aqua Engineers – WWTP Hydraulic Analysis  

• Freyer & Laureta – Miscellaneous Pump Station Improvements and Emergency Response 
Plan 

• GHD/Parson/Hazen & Sawyer – Biosolids Program 

• Hazen & Sawyer – Collections System Hydraulic Analysis 

• Pacific Wastewater Optimization – Actions to Potentially Eliminate Blending and 
STPURWE Hydraulic Grade Line Analysis 

• West Yost – Cyber Security 
 
District staff reviewed Kennedy Jenks’ proposal for Phase 3 and deemed the scope and fee 
schedule reasonable. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

1. On December 5, 2019, the Board approved the award of a contract to Kennedy Jenks for 
the IWMP and authorized a budget in the amount of $300,000 for Phase 1. 

2. On November 19, 2020, the Board approved Contract Amendment 1 with Kennedy Jenks 
for Phase 2 in the amount of $767,000. 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$302,350. This is within the budget allocation of $350,000 for FY 2024-25. 

34



1 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

7 August 2024 

 
Mr. Michael P. Cortez, P.E. 
District Engineer 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
300 Smith Ranch Road 
San Rafael, CA 94903 

 
Subject: Proposal for Professional Services for an Integrated Wastewater Master Plan 

Phase 3 
KJ 2068001*02 

 
Dear Mr. Cortez: 

This letter scope is provided at your request for Professional Services for Phase 3 of the Integrated 
Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP) for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District (District). Phase 2 of the 
IWMP is undergoing completion and this proposed amendment provides details for overlapping 
transition activities from Phase 2 to Phase 3 and all Phase 3 activities. 

Strategic Initiatives and Long-range Goals 

The District’s long-term plan is to programmatically develop the following six strategic initiatives, with 
specific tactical goals identified for each category: 

1. Improved operational efficiency 
2. Beneficial use of biosolids 
3. Improved operational resilience 
4. Conduct organizational review 
5. Asset management 
6. Facility use, access, and facility planning 

These categories provide the framework for the District’s efforts and are used to guide and focus the 
work scope detailed in this amendment 

Scope of Services 

The District’s IWMP is divided into three phases, as follows: 

 Phase 1: BRVA / Preliminary Assessments (FY 19/20) 
 Phase 2: Detailed Assessments (FY 20/21 through FY (23/24) 
 Phase 3: Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Recommendations (FY 24/25) 

Phases 1 and 2 have been completed. This proposal addresses Phase 3 which will bring together the 
outcomes from Phases 1 and 2. 

  

35



2 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

Phase 3: Mitigation Improvements 

Phase 3 builds upon the results of the Phase 2 functional performance assessments based on updated 
risk profile resulting from assessments of system physical and non-physical conditions. 

3.1: Project Management & Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) 

Kennedy Jenks (KJ) will manage the proposed scope, schedule, and budget. This task consists of 
project monitoring and administration and project quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) activities. 

3.1A Project Management: 

KJ will set up the project within KJ’s accounting system and prepare subconsultant agreements. 
Monthly invoices and status reports will be prepared and delivered to the District. 

3.1B Meetings and Coordination: 

KJ will prepare for and participate in the following meetings with the District. 
 Phase 3 Project Kick-off meeting (Virtual Meeting) 
 11 monthly status call with the Project Manager (PM) or Deputy PM. 
 Three (3) workshops with the District. Workshops will be held in lieu of that month’s status call. 

o Workshop 1 will be conducted at the conclusion of Task 3.2 and 3.3 to review of all 
findings and establish basis of likelihood of failure. Workshop anticipated to be up to 2 
hours in duration. 

o Workshop 2 will be conducted during Task 3.4. Feasible concept mitigation strategies 
will be presented to the District to facilitate the selection of priority Capital Improvement 
Projects (CIPs) and Risk Mitigation Solutions. Cost estimates will not be developed for to 
this workshop. Workshop anticipated to be up to 4 hours in duration. 

o Workshop 3 will be conducted at the end of Task 3.4 to review selected CIPs, project 
costs, and anticipated budgetary planning horizons, as they relate to risk. Workshop 
anticipated to be up to 2 hours. 

 Bi-weekly internal coordination with project team. 

3.1C QA/QC: 

KJ will provide QA/QC reviews throughout the course of this project consistent with KJ policies. Senior 
KJ staff will perform reviews. 

3.1 Deliverables: 
 

 Meeting agendas and notes in electronic form (Word doc or PDF) 
 Monthly invoices and progress status reports 

 
Assumptions: 

 
 This phase of the project is anticipated to be 14 months. 
 District provides District staff availability for meetings. 
 The Phase 3 kickoff meeting and monthly status calls will be conducted virtually over Microsoft 

Teams, and workshops will be conducted in person at the District offices. 

36



3 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

 Monthly status calls will be attended by up to two (2) KJ team members and will be up to 1 hour 
in duration. 

 District will inform KJ of changes or modifications of existing work, or newly contracted work that 
affects master planning efforts, including but not limited to, capital improvement projects, land 
use agreements, permitting changes, flow path changes, equipment decommissioning, and 
significant staffing changes. 

 For projects being done by others that contribute to the IWMP, the District shall provide KJ the 
contact information for project managers of the respective firms. 

 KJ will receive the deliverables from each of the projects done by contributing consultants within 
30 days of KJ’s request. 

 

3.2 : Capacity & Hydraulic Analysis 

KJ will incorporate the findings and capital improvement recommendations developed by other 
contributing consultants for the WWTP and sewer collection system regarding capacity and system 
hydraulics. Reports prepared by contributing consultants will be reviewed by KJ and included as an 
appendix to the IWMP. KJ will reference relevant recommendations and findings as they relate to 
IWMP and the development of concept improvements for risk mitigation and CIP planning. KJ will 
provide up to six (6) concept mitigation strategies in addition to those developed by contributing 
consultants. 

Sewer System Capacity Analysis: KJ will work collaboratively with the District staff, Hazen and 
Sawyer (Hazen) to integrate the capital improvement projects into the master plan based on Hazen’s 
hydraulic modeling results and engineering analysis. KJ understands that Hazen will do all modeling 
and capital improvement identification. 

KJ understands that Hazen is building a functional hydraulic model for the gravity portions of the sewer 
collection system. KJ will use the outputs of the hydraulic model that Hazen developed and integrate 
the artifacts into the master plan. It is our understanding that KJ will not be responsible for validating the 
results of the model nor any engineering analysis. Any errors in the model or engineering calculations 
are not the responsibility of KJ, thus KJ will not be held accountable. 

KJ will attend three (3) meetings with Hazen to discuss task initiation, report findings, and risk-based 
concept mitigation planning for sewer collection piping improvements, and three (3) meetings to discuss 
task initiation, report findings, and risk-based concept mitigation planning for sewer pump station 
improvements. 

WWTP Hydraulic Analysis: KJ understands that Hazen began designing a flow equalization structure 
for the WWTP, which was later placed on hold based on a study by Pacific Wastewater Optimization to 
potentially eliminate blending by upgrading primary effluent pumps. KJ will review and incorporate 
Hazen’s equalization structure preliminary design reports, Brown and Caldwell’s recommendations and 
findings in the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrades project, and Aqua Engineering’s IWMP 
comments. KJ understands that the District is not requiring KJ to conduct any hydraulic analysis and 
will rely solely on the analysis done by others, thus KJ will not be held responsible for the quality or 
accuracy of the analyses. 

KJ will attend three (3) meetings with Aqua and Hazen to discuss task initiation, report findings, and 
risk-based concept mitigation planning for WWTP improvements. 

Hydraulic Grade Line Analysis: Pacific Wastewater Optimization (PWO) is performing a hydraulic 
grade line analysis. For comprehensiveness, PWO’s work and recommendations will be included in the 

37



4 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

IWMP. Materials developed by PWO will be provided to KJ by LGVSD. 

Actions to Potentially Eliminate Blending: PWO is performing a preliminary design to the Primary 
Effluent Pump Station and Secondary Clarifiers to as a cost effective method to potentially eliminate 
blending to meet the NPDES Permit requirements. For comprehensiveness, PWO’s work, and 
recommendations will be included in the IWMP. Materials developed by PWO will be provided to KJ by 
LGVSD. 

3.2 Deliverables: 
 

 Results shall be discussed during Workshop 1. Findings and assessments will be described in 
relevant sections within the IWMP. 

 KJ will provide up to six (6) concept mitigation strategies for WWTP improvements and collection 
system improvements in addition to those developed by contributing consultants. 

 
3.2 Assumptions: 

 
 The District will provide contact information for Hazen project managers for all contracts that 

relate to the overall mission of the IWMP. 
 The District will provide reports done by others that may influence the master plan objectives. 
 Meetings with contributing consultants will be conducted over Microsoft Teams and will be up to 1 

hour in duration. 
 KJ will not be held responsible for errors or inaccuracies represented in any reports done by 

others. 
 Contributing consultants will fully develop Class-5 cost estimates for any capital improvement 

recommendations associated with this task. 
 KJ will convey findings from Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the IWMP as it relates to work done by the 

contributing consultants if the findings are relevant to system improvements. 

3.3 Deferred Phase 2 IWMP Elements 

3.3A Biosolids Management Facilities Assessment 

KJ understands that multiple contributing consultants are under a separate contract which has 
completed work related to biosolids management. To avoid overlap, KJ will review the contributing 
consultants’ report findings and summarize the current mid- term to long-term improvement plan 
developed by the multiple contributing consultants and incorporate into the IWMP. 

KJ will attend four (4) meetings with multiple contributing consultants to discuss task initiation, report 
findings, and risk-based concept mitigation planning. KJ will include the contributing consultants’ 
report in the Appendices of the IWMP. KJ will assess and comment on recommendations and 
incorporate these findings, as approved by the District into Task 3.4. 

3.3A Deliverables: 
 

 Results shall be discussed during Workshop 1. Findings and assessments will be described in 
relevant sections within the IWMP. 

 KJ will provide up to 2 concept mitigation strategies for biosolids facility improvements. 
 
3.3A Assumptions: 

38



5 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

 
 KJ is not expected to conduct any further analysis relative to the Biosolids Management Facilities 

and will not be held accountable for results based on work done by others. 
 The District will provide contact information for contributing consultant project managers for all 

contracts that relate to the overall mission of the IWMP. 
 Meetings with multiple contributing consultants will be conducted over Microsoft Teams and are 

anticipated to be up to 1 hour in duration. 
 The District will provide reports received from contributing consultants for all contracts that relate 

to the overall mission of the IWMP. 
 Representatives from multiple contributing consultants will be made available for communication 

and meetings with KJ. 
 KJ will not be held responsible for errors or inaccuracies represented in any reports done by 

others. 
 Contributing consultants will fully develop Class-5 cost estimates (rough order of magnitude 

estimates) for any capital improvement recommendations associated with this task. 
 KJ will convey findings from Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the IWMP as it relates to work done by the 

contributing consultants if the findings are relevant to system improvements. 
 
3.3B: Recycled Water System Summary 

A recycled water system assessment will not be conducted as part of the IWMP. However, a brief 
description of the District’s recycled water system will be provided in the IWMP. 

3.3B Deliverables: 

 A summary of the District’s recycled water system will be provided in the IWMP. 
 
3.3B Assumptions: 

 The District will provide contracts with wholesale customers and recycled water annual report. 

3.3 C: Climate Change and Sea Level Rise (SLR) Assessment 

Working with its subconsultant ESA, KJ will continue the exposure pathway evaluation to specific 
exposures from permanent tidal and temporary storm hazards across up to three-time horizons 
(existing, mid-century, and late-century) for priority collection system and treatment facility assets. Sea- 
level rise projections will be based on State guidance. The assessment will build on the work completed 
in Phases 1 and 2 of the IWMP, which included a hazard overlay and flood elevation threshold 
analyses of the collection system assets but not the treatment plant. 

 
 We will overlay sea-level rise hazard maps for non-storm and storm conditions onto the existing 

plant asset map to identify potentially vulnerable assets for three (3) time horizons: existing, mid-
century, and late-century. At-risk assets will be tabulated and described. Flood pathways will be 
identified and discussed for implications of vulnerability and opportunities for adaptation. KJ will 
provide the CAD facility layouts to ESA. 

 We will conduct a flood elevation threshold analysis of the treatment plant assets to assess the 
sea-level rise capacity available for each asset before it is expected to be damaged or 
compromised by permanent or storm flooding. KJ and ESA will prepare an inventory of potentially 
vulnerable infrastructure, which will include the asset name, type, current elevation of flood 

39



6 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

protection, sensitivity to flooding, adaptive capacity, and potentially other criteria to be 
determined. We will estimate the approximate time (future year) that each asset would potentially 
be at risk to non-storm and storm flooding projected by sea-level rise. For each at-risk asset we 
will consider potential opportunities for adaptation. 

 KJ and ESA will identify concept level flood risk mitigation and sea-level rise adaptation options 
for key infrastructure located within potential storm and tidal hazards areas with a goal to protect 
the most vulnerable District wastewater systems. Concepts will be developed in the following 
process: 

o Establish adaptation criteria 
o Identify opportunities and constraints 
o Develop conceptual adaptation alternatives 

The adaptation concepts will generally use a combination of strategies (e.g., protect, 
accommodate, relocate/retreat, hybrid, etc.). KJ will develop illustrative graphics to a conceptual 
level that focus on primary adaptation actions. Each conceptual adaptation alternative will 
include a succinct discussion on the adaptation pathways, where different sequences of phased 
adaptation actions can be taken to yield a desired long-term goal. 

 
ESA’s desktop assessment will also include analysis of Miller Creek to identify flood risk, SLR 
adaptation, and creek channel maintenance needs along the creek – see Task 3.3E for more details. 

 
3.3C Deliverables: 

 
 ESA will provide a Technical Memorandum (TM). This will be reviewed by KJ and then sent to 

the District for review. Findings and assessments shall be described in relevant sections within 
the IWMP. ESA TM shall be included in the IWMP Appendices. 

 KJ will provide up to 3 concept-level flood risk mitigation and sea-level rise adaptation strategies 
for the sole purpose of providing a fee estimate for the planning, design, and implementation of 
those strategies. 

 
3.3 C Assumptions 

 KJ will strive to integrate information from other related adaptation planning efforts within our 
available budget. 

 Hazard maps will be based on publicly available data sources, such as BCDC Adapting to 
Rising Tides, USGS CoSMoS, or other available sea-level rise hazard mapping. Hazard maps 
will not be altered to visualize the anticipated effects of adaptation concepts. 

 The District will provide a digital map of wastewater assets at the plant in GIS, AutoCAD, or 
related software compatibility. 

 
3.3D: Physical and Digital Security Assessment 

KJ will assess the District’s WWTP and Pump Stations risk(s) relative to physical site security and will 
provide preliminary mitigation recommendations accordingly. Some site security at the Pump Stations 
were assessed during the Phase 2 condition assessment; this work will be incorporated into the results. 
This task will evaluate the same ten (10) pump station facilities using the ASCE AWWA Guidelines for 
Physical Security of Wastewater/Stormwater Utilities. 

 
KJ understands that West Yost is under contract by the District to perform SCADA security 
assessments and that KJ will review the West Yost recommendations and incorporate them as part of 
the short-, mid- and long-term capital improvements strategy. KJ will attend up to three (3) meetings 
with West Yost to discuss task initiation, report findings, and risk-based concept mitigation planning. 

40



7 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

KJ will utilize the West Yost’s report in the Appendices of the IWMP. KJ will assess and comment on 
recommendations and incorporate these findings, as approved by the District into Task 3.4. 

 
3.3D Deliverables: 

 
 Results shall be discussed during Workshop 1. Findings and assessments will be described in 

relevant sections within the IWMP. 
 KJ will review and receive improvement recommendations and engineer’s opinion of cost from 

West Yost. KJ will incorporate the West Yost recommendations into the short-, mid-, and long- 
term capital improvement plan. 

 KJ will perform 1 day of site visits for the physical site security assessment. 
 
3.3D Assumptions: 

 
 District will help facilitate analyses and provide site access and reviews as noted. 
 The District will provide contact information for West Yost project managers for all contracts that 

relate to the overall mission of the IWMP. 
 Meetings with West Yost will be conducted over Microsoft Teams and will be up to 1 hour in 

duration. 
 The District will keep KJ apprised of modification or delays in West Yost scope of work. 
 The District will provide reports received from West Yost for all contracts that relate to the 

overall mission of the IWMP. 
 Representatives from West Yost will be made available for communication and meetings with 

KJ. 
 District will help facilitate analyses and provide site access and reviews as noted and KJ will 

perform 1 day of site visits for this assessment. 
 KJ will utilize reports done by contributing consultants and include them in the Appendices of 

the IWMP and will reference relevant recommendations and findings as it relates to IWMP and 
the development of concept improvements for risk mitigation and CIP planning. 

 KJ will not be held responsible for errors or inaccuracies represented in any reports done by 
others. 

 Contributing consultants will fully develop Class-5 cost estimates for any capital improvement 
recommendations associated with this task. 

 KJ will convey findings from Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the IWMP as it relates to work done by the 
contributing consultants if the findings are relevant to system improvements. 

 

3.3E: Miller Creek Flood, SLR Adaptation, and Maintenance Management 

The District utilizes Miller Creek to discharge effluent through two outfalls on the lower tidal reach of 
Miller Creek. In this location, Miller Creek functions hydraulicly as a tidal slough that conveys fluvial 
storm flows. 

 
KJ has subcontracted ESA to provide a desktop-level assessment of flood risk, sea-level rise 
adaptation, and creek channel maintenance needs along Miller Creek. This assessment will include 
discussion of the vulnerability of the wastewater assets and levee system to the 100-year flood event 
for existing and future conditions with sea level rise. We will develop a conceptual model to illustrate 
how adaption actions, such as flood protection improvements, structural modifications to facilities, and 
creek channel maintenance, could affect treatment plant functions. The objective of this IWMP task is 
to: 

 
1. Assess existing flood modeling data and conduct a desktop evaluation of whether the Miller Creek 

41



8 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

levee elevations are below the 100-year flood elevation (under coastal, fluvial, and combined 
flood events), and to evaluate potential impacts to District facilities if the levees do overtop. 

 
a. KJ and ESA assume that the District intends to use the existing FEMA 100-year base 

flood elevation for fluvial flooding (Miller Creek) and for coastal flooding (San Pablo Bay) 
from the effective Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) as a basis for the analysis of 
existing conditions flooding with no sea-level rise. 

 
b. The combined fluvial & coastal 100-year flood elevation profile has not been evaluated in 

detail for existing conditions. ESA proposes to create an estimated “assumed design 
flood elevation” water surface profile based on the available, existing FEMA 100-year 
flood profile for Miller Creek and the current FEMA 100-year coastal flood elevation 
using methods to combine the effects of coastal storm surge with riverine runoff, which 
are described in the FEMA (2005) Guidelines for Coastal Flood Analysis and Mapping 
for the Pacific Coast of the United States. 

 
2. Discuss potential impacts of sedimentation and vegetation growth within the Miller Creek 

channel on treatment plant operations, and hydraulic and ecological functions of the creek. We 
will also describe how periods of elevated water level associated with storm surge and high 
creek discharge affect the discharge of effluent and stormwater by gravity and pumps for 
existing and future conditions with sea-level rise. This will involve developing a schematic to 
illustrate the processes and a bullet list of areas that could be affected by these issues. 

 
3. Identify concept-level flood risk mitigation and sea-level rise adaptation measures. 

 
a. Flood risk mitigation measures will be developed with the general goal of providing 

resilient flood protection for the estimated 100-year fluvial, coastal, and combined flood 
events. 

 
b. KJ and ESA will describe the potential flood protection benefits in qualitative terms and 

provide estimates for the potential ranges for design geometry parameters required to 
achieve the desired level of flood protection (e.g., levee heights, channel widths and 
depths, etc.). Additional studies (including hydrologic and hydraulic analyses) will be 
needed to verify and refine this qualitative assessment of potential flood protection 
benefits and are not included in this scope of work. 

 
4. Identify maintenance best management practices to support levee and channel functions. 

 
5. Develop a qualitative assessment of implications of sea level rise on future channel and levee 

maintenance and discuss potential future adaptive management in the context of sea-level rise. 
 

6. Prepare a brief outline of potential regulatory agency and community outreach efforts to support 
the proposed flood risk mitigation and sea-level rise adaptation measures. 

 
a. KJ, ESA, and LGVSD will discuss outreach priorities, such as outreach to support future 

permitting, required environmental studies, CEQA compliance, coordination with 
neighboring landowners, rate payers, and/or outreach to other potentially interested 
parties. 

 
3.3E Deliverables: 

 ESA will provide a Technical Memorandum (TM). This will be reviewed by KJ and then sent to 

42



9 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

the District for review. Findings and assessments shall be described in relevant sections within 
the IWMP. ESA’s TM shall be included in the IWMP Appendices. 

 KJ will provide up to 2 concept mitigation strategies for Miller Creek improvements. 
 KJ will provide a general listing of best maintenance practices to sustain channel performance 

and levee health. 
 
3.3E Assumptions: 

 
 KJ and ESA will use the latest FEMA studies to determine the design flood elevations. Please 

note that the FEMA information could be outdated and have inherent inaccuracies. 
 Miller Creek water elevations from FEMA may have inherent inaccuracies due to changes to the 

environmental conditions, plant growth, and past maintenance or construction activities. 
 KJ and ESA will develop conceptual adaptation strategies with the aim of providing a 100-year 

level of flood protection to the District’s facilities for present-day sea-levels and for future mid- 
century and late-century sea-level rise conditions. 

 There may be limitations of this analysis due to using the “assumed design flood elevation” 
water surface profile using the Miller Creek flood elevations from the FEMA information. 

 This task does not include continuing the water level gauge program. 
 Without modeling the hydrology and the hydraulics associated with Miller Creek, we will not be 

able to provide a detailed analysis of the relative flood protection. Without hydrology and 
hydraulic modeling there will be inherent limitations and uncertainties. We assume that analysis 
of field data (i.e., water level gauges currently installed in Miller Creek) will not be analyzed in 
this scope of work. 

 KJ will not provide a preliminary analysis for a seismic evaluation as it relates to the Miller Creek 
Levee system. We assume all seismic evaluations will be executed during the preliminary 
improvement mitigation studies. 

 KJ will not develop detailed standard operating procedures relative to Miller Creek’s channel 
performance or levee system. 

 

3.3F: Land Management & Optimization – Removed per District Request 

Task details not provided. 
 

3.3G: Energy Management 

KJ understands that Alternative Energy System Consulting (AESC) performed an evaluation of the 
District’s energy usage. KJ will evaluate the report findings along with the findings from the SFSU 
Industrial Assessment Center (IAC) and include improvement recommendations. KJ will utilize AESC’s 
report, and the SFSU Industrial Assessment Center (IAC) in the Appendices of the IWMP and will 
reference relevant recommendations and findings as it relates to IWMP and the development of 
concept improvements for risk mitigation and CIP planning. KJ will assess and comment on 
recommendations and incorporate these findings, as approved by the District into Task 3.4. 

 
3.3G Deliverables: 

 
 Results shall be discussed during Workshop 1. Findings and assessments will be described in 

relevant sections within the IWMP. 
 KJ will have 3 meetings with AESC: task initiation, report findings, and risk-based concept 

mitigation planning. 

 KJ will provide up to 2 concept mitigation strategies for energy management improvements. 
 

43



10 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

3.3G Assumptions: 
 

 KJ will not perform additional energy audits. 
 The District will provide contact information for AESC project managers for all contracts that 

relate to the overall mission of the IWMP. 
 The District will keep KJ apprised of modification or delays in AESC scope of work. 
 Meetings with AESC will be conducted over Microsoft Teams and are anticipated to be up to 1 

hour in duration. 
 The District will provide reports received from AESC for all contracts that relate to the overall 

mission of the IWMP. 
 Representatives from AESC will be made available for communication and meetings with KJ. 
 KJ will utilize reports done by contributing consultants and include them in the Appendices of 

the IWMP and will reference relevant recommendations and findings as it relates to IWMP and 
the development of concept improvements for risk mitigation and CIP planning. 

 KJ will not be held responsible for errors or inaccuracies represented in any reports done by 
others. 

 Contributing consultants will fully develop Class-5 cost estimates for any capital improvement 
recommendations associated with this task. 

 KJ will convey findings from Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the IWMP as it relates to work done by the 
contributing consultants if the findings are relevant to system improvements. 

 

3.4 Risk-Based CIP 

Preliminary CIP Options Development 

KJ will use the information gathered from the LGVSD 2023 Sewer Rate Study’s 5-year Capital 
Improvement Program schedule and values, the System-level BRVA Heatmap that describes the 
systems needing improvement as identified by the District and KJ, and work done by contributing 
consultants. The District recently provided a list of fifty-five (55) CIPs that were used in the 2023 Sewer 
Rate Study. Based on the LGVSD 2023 Sewer Rate Study CIP 5-year Capital Improvement Program 
schedule and the District-adjusted BRVA Heatmap, KJ assumes that twenty-four (24) Sewer Collection 
System and Plant related CIP projects, as shown in Table 1, will be included in the IWMP. Of the 24 
CIP projects, KJ assumes that the CIP identification, definition, and Class-5 cost estimation will be done 
by the other contributing consultants relative to their current IWMP related assignments. As shown in 
Table 1, 21 projects have been identified by contributing consultants, and three projects have been 
identified by KJ. KJ will not be held responsible for means or methods CIP projects developed by 
contributing consultants. Table 1 provides the Sewer Collection and Plant Systems that the District has 
set aside needing a CIP and that has been included in the 2023 LGVSD Sewer Rate Study. 

  

44



11 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

Table 1 - LGVSD Systems Requiring Capital Improvements 
 

# LGVSD System-Level Asset CIP Identified By 

1 Civic Center PS F&L/HSE 

2 Headworks Hazen 
3 Smith Ranch PS F&L/HSE 
4 Mulligan Subbasin (Gravity Line) Hazen 
5 Mulligan PS & FM F&L/HSE/Hazen 
6 SCADA WY 
7 PC-1 Aqua 
8 John Duckett (Terra Linda) FM & PS F&L/HSE/GHD 
9 John Ducket Subbasin (Gravity Line) Hazen 

10 Terra Linda Siphon Hazen/GHD 
11 Freeway Undercrossing Hazen/GHD 
12 Marinwood Subbasin (Gravity Line) Hazen 
13 Marin Lagoon PS F&L/HSE 
14 Reclamation Area Pasture/Ponds/System KJ 
15 Reclamation System KJ 
16 San Rafael Meadows PS F&L/HSE 
17 Sludge Lagoons Multiple Contributing Consultants 
18 Digester 1 Multiple Contributing Consultants 
19 PC-2&3 Aqua 
20 Digester 2 Multiple Contributing Consultants 
21 Miller Creek Outfall Aqua 
22 Captains Cove F&L/HSE 
23 Lab KJ 
24 Influent Flow Magnetic Flow Meter Aqua 

 
KJ will work with the District and contributing consultants to prioritize up to 24 CIPs out of the concept 
mitigation strategies for capital planning, identifying feasible projects for near-, mid-, and long-term 
solution. KJ assumes that the contributing consultants will be responsible in preparing CIP 
summary sheets for the recommended projects or project packages. Figure 1 provides an 
illustration as to how KJ will administer the CIP development process with the contributing 
consultants. It is important to note that ESA is the only subconsultant to KJ. The other contributing 
consultants are contracted through the District and are not the responsibility of KJ relative to 
professional standard of care nor means and methods. 

45



12 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

Figure 1: IWMP Improvements and Contributing Consultants 
 

KJ will present these options to the District at one 4-hour workshop to seek consensus on the CIP lists 
and project summary descriptions and Class 5 cost estimates. 

 

Final CIP Plan development 

KJ will provide a list of WWTP, collection system, and RWF CIPs for budgeting purposes and a related 
list of upcoming regulations that may be impacted. KJ will consolidate asset needs into logical CIP 
projects based on asset type, funding, system location, and other considerations and will work with the 
District to prioritize CIP projects based on risks, regulatory drivers, and financing. 

 
3.4 Deliverables: 

 
 Meeting agenda and materials for Workshop 2 
 Meeting agenda and materials for Workshop 3 
 Findings shall be described in relevant sections within the IWMP. Cost estimates shall be 

included in the Appendices of the IWMP 
 Class 5 OPCCs for capital improvement projects included in the appendices of the IWMP. 
 KJ will provide budgetary cost estimates for non-CIP and O&M business process improvements 

(for example, improving the asset management systems). 
  

3.4 Assumptions: 
 

 KJ will convey findings from Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the IWMP as it relates to work done by the 
contributing consultants if the findings are relevant to system improvements. 

 Contributing consultants will provide OPCCs for recommendations identified in their work. 
o For the purposes of developing a fee estimate for services, KJ is assumed to develop up 

to 12 OPCCs for capital improvements. KJ will develop three estimates for projects 
already identified by KJ (see lines 14, 15, and 23 in Table 1) and may develop up to 8 
additional estimates, for a total of up to 12 cost estimates. 

 The District will affirm priority projects prior to cost estimate development. 
 District will provide staff for workshops. 

  

46



13 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 
 

3.5: Integrated Wastewater Master Plan 
The IWMP will document results of all assessments from KJ and other consultants that contributed their 
respective efforts directly associated with the IWMP. This task will integrate the Sewer System Capacity, 
the Wastewater Treatment Plant Capacity, Biosolids Management Facilities, Climate Change and Sea 
Level Rise Impacts, Physical and Digital Security, and Energy Management recommendations with 
those at the WWTP and will group asset needs into logical CIP projects based on location, asset type, 
priority, and financing options and based on preferred alternatives. Deferred Phase 2 tasks will be 
combined in Appendix files and as Sections of the IWMP to improve efficiency and delivery of the IWMP. 
 
The IWMP will include two maps to convey recommendations: 

 
1. Map of LGVSD sewer system with recommended improvements. 

 
2. Map of LGVSD WWTP with recommended improvements. 

 
3.5 Deliverables: 

 
 One (1) Draft Integrated Wastewater Master Plan 
 One (1) Final Integrated Wastewater Master Plan 
 Materials for one (1) presentation to LGVSD board. 

 
3.5 Assumptions: 

 
 Phase 1 and Phase 2 Technical Memorandums will be included as chapters and Appendices in 

the IWMP 
 Third-party consultant work that falls under the purview of the IWMP will be commented on in 

relevant sections of the IWMP and the full reports will be included as Appendices. 
 

Project Schedule 
 
Figure 2: Phase 3 Schedule and Tasks 

 

47



14 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 

Budget 

A summary of the IWMP Phase 3 budget is provided in Table 2. Phase 3 budget will be authorized 
based on the scope of services detailed herein and will require additional funding for the overall IWMP 
budget to support additional tasks and services described earlier. 

 
Table 2: Phase 3 Engineering Costs 

 

Task Cost 

3.1 Project Management $48,334 
3.2 Sewer System & WWTP Capacity & Hydraulic Analysis $34,154 
3.3 Deferred Phase 2 IWMP Elements $212,899 

3.3A Biosolids Management Facilities Assessment $21,528 
3.3B Recycled Water System Assessment $5,138 
3.3C Climate Change and SLR Assessment $97,698 
3.3D Physical and Digital Security Assessment $15,402 
3.3E Miller Creek Management $67,101 
3.3F Land Management (District Removed) $0 
3.3G Energy Management $6,032 

3.4 Risk Based CIP $74,339 
3.5 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan $56,927 
CONTRACT AMOUNT $426,652 

 
Table 3 provides the overall budget history for all phases of the IWMP project. The last column provides 
the proposed amended fee for the Phase 3 IWMP effort after applying the $124,302 to the proposed 
Phase 3 fee of $340,631. 

 
Table 3: Overall Budget Summary and Proposed Phase 3 Amendment 

IWMP Budget Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 3 Amendment 
Original Budget/Proposed Fee $300,000 $767,000 $426,652 $302,350 

Budget Remaining $46 $124,302 $0 $0 
 
Closing 

 
We look forward to working with you to develop your Integrated Wastewater Master Plan. Please do not 
hesitate to contact me with any questions on this letter scope. 

Very sincerely yours, 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

 
 
Gerald Fejarang Karina Yap 
Project Manager Deputy Project Manager 

 
 
 
 
Enclosures:  
Exhibit A – Fee Schedule 

48



15 
 

275 Battery Street, Suite 550 | San Francisco, CA 94111 

(916) 858-2713 | geraldfejarang@kennedyjenks.com 
https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/lasgallinasvalleysdmasterplan/shared documents/2068001.02 phase 3/scope/lgvsd iwmp phase 3 sow draft rev6.docx 

EXHIBIT A – FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 
  
 

49



Proposal Fee Estimate Kennedy Jenks

 CLIENT Name:  
PROJECT Description: 
Proposal/Job Number: Date:

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Integrated Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP) - Phase 3
2068001*02 July 28, 2023

January 1, 2023 Rates KJ KJ KJ KJ KJ KJ

Classification: Total L
ab

o
r

E
sc

al
at

io
n

C
o

m
m

. 
C

h
ar

g
es

E
S

A

S
u

b
-M

ar
ku

p

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

Hourly Rate: $320 $320 $305 $305 $285 $285 $260 $240 $240 $240 $240 $220 $220 $200 $180 $180 $140 $120 Hours Fees 0% 4% Fees 10% Fees 10% Fees

3.1 Project Management & QA/QC

3.1A Project Management 10 24 12 46 $10,160 $0 $406 $0 $1,000 $100 $10,160 $0 $1,506 $11,666

3.1B Meetings & Coordination 25 40 12 77 $19,440 $0 $778 $0 $1,000 $100 $19,440 $0 $1,878 $21,318

3.1C QA/QC 8 40 48 $14,760 $0 $590 $0 $0 $14,760 $0 $590 $15,350

Subtotal Task 3.1 43 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64 12 0 0 0 12 0 171 $44,360 $0 $1,774 $0 $0 $2,000 $200 $44,360 $0 $3,974 $48,334

3.2 Capacity and Hydraulic Analysis (Hazen/F&L)

3.2A Coordination & Meetings 9 8 6 6 29 $6,920 $0 $277 $0 $0 $6,920 $0 $277 $7,197

3.2B Sewer System Hydraulic Analysis (Hazen F&L) 8 4 8 20 $4,240 $0 $170 $0 $0 $4,240 $0 $170 $4,410

3.2C WWTP Hydraulic Analysis (WPO) 16 8 16 16 56 $12,320 $0 $493 $0 $0 $12,320 $0 $493 $12,813

3.2D.3 Recommendations 8 8 8 8 8 4 44 $9,360 $0 $374 $0 $0 $9,360 $0 $374 $9,734

Subtotal Task 3.2 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 16 0 28 16 30 22 8 4 0 149 $32,840 $0 $1,314 $0 $0 $0 $0 $32,840 $0 $1,314 $34,154

3.3 Deferred Phase 2 IWMP Elements

3.3A Biosolids Management Facilities Assessment

3.3A.1 Coordination & Meetings 4 12 8 24 $6,700 $0 $268 $0 $0 $6,700 $0 $268 $6,968

3.3A.2 Solids Handling Assessment (GHD - Mary Martis) 8 8 16 32 $7,080 $0 $283 $0 $0 $7,080 $0 $283 $7,363

3.3A.3 Recommendations 8 6 8 8 2 32 $6,920 $0 $277 $0 $0 $6,920 $0 $277 $7,197

Subtotal Task 3.3A 4 0 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22 0 0 24 8 2 0 88 $20,700 $0 $828 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,700 $0 $828 $21,528

3.3B Recycled Water System Summary

3.3B.1 Coordination & Meetings 1 1 $220 $0 $9 $0 $0 $220 $0 $9 $229

3.3B.2 Data Review 2 8 10 $2,040 $0 $82 $0 $0 $2,040 $0 $82 $2,122

3.3B.3 Recycled Water System Assessment 2 8 2 2 14 $2,680 $0 $107 $0 $0 $2,680 $0 $107 $2,787

Subtotal Task 3.3B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 16 0 2 2 0 25 $4,940 $0 $198 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,940 $0 $198 $5,138

3.3C Climate Change and SLR Assessment

3.3C.1 Coordination & Meetings 8 16 24 $5,600 $0 $224 $78,000 $7,800 $0 $5,600 $85,800 $224 $91,624

3.3C.2 Climate Change and SLR Assessment (ESA) 4 8 8 8 28 $5,840 $0 $234 $0 $0 $5,840 $0 $234 $6,074

Subtotal Task 3.3C 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 24 0 8 0 8 0 0 52 $11,440 $0 $458 $78,000 $7,800 $0 $0 $11,440 $85,800 $458 $97,698

3.3D Physical and Digital Security Assessment

3.3D.1 Coordination & Meetings 2 4 4 4 14 $3,460 $0 $138 $0 $0 $3,460 $0 $138 $3,598

3.3D.2 Data Review 2 8 10 $2,040 $0 $82 $0 $0 $2,040 $0 $82 $2,122

3.3D.3 Security Assessment 16 2 8 8 34 $8,040 $0 $322 $0 $1,200 $120 $8,040 $0 $1,642 $9,682

Subtotal Task 3.3D 2 0 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 20 0 8 0 0 58 $13,540 $0 $542 $0 $0 $1,200 $120 $13,540 $0 $1,862 $15,402

3.3E Miller Creek Flood, SLR Adapation, and Maintenance Management

3.3E.1 Coordination & Meetings 4 4 2 4 14 $3,420 $0 $137 $52,000 $5,200 $0 $3,420 $57,200 $137 $60,757

3.3E.2 Miller Creek Management (ESA) 4 4 4 8 8 28 $6,100 $0 $244 $0 $0 $6,100 $0 $244 $6,344

Subtotal Task 3.4E 0 0 0 0 8 0 8 0 0 0 0 6 0 12 0 8 0 0 42 $9,520 $0 $381 $52,000 $5,200 $0 $0 $9,520 $57,200 $381 $67,101

3.3F Land Management & Optimization (District Removed)

3.3F.1 Coordination & Meetings 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

3.3F.2 Land Management and Optimization 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal Task 3.3F 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

3.3G Energy Management

3.3G.1 Energy Management and Optimization (AESC) 2 10 2 10 4 28 $5,800 $0 $232 $0 $0 $5,800 $0 $232 $6,032

Subtotal Task 3.3G 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 2 0 10 4 0 0 28 $5,800 $0 $232 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,800 $0 $232 $6,032

Subtotal Task 3.3 8 0 28 0 8 20 20 0 0 0 0 75 2 56 34 38 4 0 293 $65,940 $0 $2,638 $130,000 $13,000 $1,200 $120 $65,940 $143,000 $3,958 $212,898

3.4 Risk Based CIP

3.5A Coordination & Meetings 8 6 16 16 46 $11,160 $0 $446 $0 $0 $11,160 $0 $446 $11,606

3.5B Remaining Useful Life & Likelihood of Failure Analysis 16 4 8 16 16 60 $12,560 $0 $502 $0 $0 $12,560 $0 $502 $13,062

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

F
ej

ar
an

g

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

F
al

le
r

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

M
. 

C
u

ll
in

g
to

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

D
. 

T
af

fl
er

E
n

g
-S

ci
-7

R
. 

S
te

ve
n

s

E
n

g
-S

ci
-6

J.
 L

ar
se

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

S
. 

It
ag

ak
i

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

E
. 

K
im

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

J.
 S

lo
an

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

C
. 

R
u

tt
en

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

J.
 H

o
ff

m
an

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

K
. 

Y
ap

 

T
o

ta
l

S
u

b
s

T
o

ta
l

E
xp

en
se

s

T
o

ta
l L

ab
o

r  
+ 

S
u

b
s 

+  
E

xp
en

se
s

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

M
. 

C
ap

ac
i

E
n

g
-S

ci
-3

V
. 

F
re

it
as

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

C
.E

u
st

aq
io

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

L
. 

H
u

d
so

n

P
ro

je
ct

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r

A
d

m
in

. 
A

ss
is

t.

T
o

ta
l

L
ab

o
r

C:\Users\GeraldFejarang\Kennedy Jenks Consultants, Inc\Las Gallinas Valley SD Master Plan - Documents\02-CntrctsAgmts\Proposal Stuff\Phase 3 Scoping Docs\LGVSD IWMP Ph 3 Budget Estimate - Rev2.xlsm © 2019 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.

(PWO)

50



Proposal Fee Estimate Kennedy Jenks

 CLIENT Name:  
PROJECT Description: 
Proposal/Job Number: Date:

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Integrated Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP) - Phase 3
2068001*02 July 28, 2023

January 1, 2023 Rates KJ KJ KJ KJ KJ KJ

Classification: Total L
ab

o
r

E
sc

al
at

io
n

C
o

m
m

. 
C

h
ar

g
es

E
S

A

S
u

b
-M

ar
ku

p

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

Hourly Rate: $320 $320 $305 $305 $285 $285 $260 $240 $240 $240 $240 $220 $220 $200 $180 $180 $140 $120 Hours Fees 0% 4% Fees 10% Fees 10% Fees

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

F
ej

ar
an

g

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

F
al

le
r

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

M
. 

C
u

ll
in

g
to

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

D
. 

T
af

fl
er

E
n

g
-S

ci
-7

R
. 

S
te

ve
n

s

E
n

g
-S

ci
-6

J.
 L

ar
se

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

S
. 

It
ag

ak
i

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

E
. 

K
im

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

J.
 S

lo
an

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

C
. 

R
u

tt
en

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

J.
 H

o
ff

m
an

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

K
. 

Y
ap

 

T
o

ta
l

S
u

b
s

T
o

ta
l

E
xp

en
se

s

T
o

ta
l L

ab
o

r  
+ 

S
u

b
s 

+  
E

xp
en

se
s

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

M
. 

C
ap

ac
i

E
n

g
-S

ci
-3

V
. 

F
re

it
as

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

C
.E

u
st

aq
io

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

L
. 

H
u

d
so

n

P
ro

je
ct

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r

A
d

m
in

. 
A

ss
is

t.

T
o

ta
l

L
ab

o
r

3.4B Risk Mitigation Solutions 2 12 8 16 16 54 $11,120 $0 $445 $0 $0 $11,120 $0 $445 $11,565

3.5C Update Risk Registry 16 4 4 16 16 56 $11,680 $0 $467 $0 $0 $11,680 $0 $467 $12,147

3.5E Risk-Based CIP 2 40 16 8 16 24 8 4 118 $24,960 $0 $998 $0 $0 $24,960 $0 $998 $25,958

Subtotal Task 3.4 12 0 0 0 0 0 6 32 0 0 40 52 44 64 72 8 0 4 334 $71,480 $0 $2,859 $0 $0 $0 $0 $71,480 $0 $2,859 $74,339

3.5 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan

3.6A Coordination & Meetings 4 4 12 4 24 $5,840 $0 $234 $0 $1,000 $100 $5,840 $0 $1,334 $7,174

3.6B IWMP Draft 4 8 4 40 40 24 16 136 $25,120 $0 $1,005 $0 $0 $25,120 $0 $1,005 $26,125

3.6C IWMP Final 4 8 4 40 40 16 8 120 $22,720 $0 $909 $0 $0 $22,720 $0 $909 $23,629

Subtotal Task 3.5 4 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 28 12 80 80 40 0 24 280 $53,680 $0 $2,147 $0 $0 $1,000 $100 $53,680 $0 $3,247 $56,927

Subtotal  Tasks 3.2 to 3.5 41 0 28 0 8 20 38 32 8 16 40 183 74 230 208 94 8 28 1056 $277,620 $0 $8,958 $130,000 $13,000 $2,200 $220 $223,940 $143,000 $11,378 $378,318

Phase 3 Total 84 0 28 40 8 20 38 32 8 16 40 247 86 230 208 94 20 28 1227 $321,980 $0 $10,732 $130,000 $13,000 $4,200 $420 $268,300 $143,000 $15,352 $426,652

C:\Users\GeraldFejarang\Kennedy Jenks Consultants, Inc\Las Gallinas Valley SD Master Plan - Documents\02-CntrctsAgmts\Proposal Stuff\Phase 3 Scoping Docs\LGVSD IWMP Ph 3 Budget Estimate - Rev2.xlsm © 2019 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.51



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\08152024\MSS Annual Report\ASR MSS Annual Report 2023.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: August 15, 2024 

Re: Marin Sanitary Service Update and 2023 Annual Report 
 

Item Type:   Consent   Action        Information X  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No X (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Informational only.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (District) provides solid waste management services to 
residents within the unincorporated areas of the District through the franchise agreement with 
Marin Sanitary Service, the District’s current solid waste franchisee.  
 
In addition to garbage, recycling, and compost services in northern Marin, Marin Sanitary Service 
plays a critical role in the District’s efforts to implement the statewide organic waste recycling and 
surplus food recovery program required by SB 1383 to reduce short-lived climate pollutants.    
  
Justin Wilcock from Marin Sanitary Service will present an annual report on the state of Marin 
Sanitary Service. 
 
The full 2023 Service Area Annual Report is attached and available on our District webpage 
https://www.lgvsd.org/trash-collection-and-recycling.  
 

The Marin Sanitary Service report covers the previous calendar year and serves as a foundation 
for upcoming discussions related to the franchise agreement. Refuse rate adjustments for 2025 
will be considered and brought before the Board in December.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 
  
  
  

Item Number________3.1______ 

GM Review   _________CP_____ 

 

52

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org
https://www.lgvsd.org/trash-collection-and-recycling


           

     2023 SERVICE AREA 

ANNUAL REPORT  

Marin Sanitary Service 
1050 Andersen Drive, San Rafael CA, 94901 
Tel 415-456-2601 
www.marinsanitaryservice.com 
 

53



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 2 

Table of Contents 

Status of New Technologies and Industry Practices Enhancing Progress Toward Zero Waste ________ 3 

Progress of Programs or Services Implemented in the Past Two Years _________________________ 6 

Description and Progress of Zero Waste Programs _________________________________________ 8 

Green House Gas Mitigation _________________________________________________________ 10 

Public Education Activities Undertaken During the Year ___________________________________ 11 

Recycling and Organics Program Participation “Set Outs” __________________________________ 27 

Year-Over-Year Change in Customer Account Data ________________________________________ 32 

Recycling Rates ___________________________________________________________________ 33 

Other Information (Quarterly Report Data) _____________________________________________ 36 

Contact Information _______________________________________________________________ 38 

 
 

54



STATUS OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES 

Page 3 

Status of New Technologies and Industry Practices Enhancing 
Progress Toward Zero Waste 

The company kicked off the celebration of 75-years in operation with a ribbon cutting for two new 

pieces of technology, the depackager and the optical sorter. The event was a great opportunity to 

recognize the continued innovations of the company and to inform about and demonstrate the new 

pieces of equipment to community members. 

 

 

 

55



STATUS OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES 

Page 4 

TIGER DEPACKAGER 

 
The TIGER depackager has led to modifications to the F2E program allowing customers to put 

materials in clear plastic bags boosting participation. With the Tiger, the company has implemented 

the Packaged Organic Waste Energy Recovery (POWER) program for packaged food waste that 

previously was going to the landfill. The company also receives occasional loads of spoiled food from 

food manufacturers and distributors. This new technology has been successful at expanding the 

amount and type of food waste that the company is able to receive and divert from the landfill.  

Exhibit 1 shows the increase in total F2E tons received in 2023. 

 

  

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

F2E Tons in 2023

Tons Processed by the TIGER

Exhibit 1 

 

56



STATUS OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES 

Page 5 

Packaged Organic Waste Energy Recovery (POWER) Program 
 
With the TIGER Depackager in place, the company created the POWER program. MSS collection trucks 

pick up the packaged and unpackaged organic waste in dumpsters and bring them to the TIGER 

depackager where previously landfilled organic waste is separated from its plastic, metal or paper 

packaging and recovered to be sent to Central Marin Sanitation Agency for digestion and power 

generation. The POWER program, currently has 6 grocery stores participating.   

 

OPTICAL SORTER 

 
The optical sorter was installed in Q4 of 2022. This material sensing technology was installed on our 

paper sorting line to aide employees by mechanically removing any colored paper from the paper 

streams to ensure a cleaner white paper bale.

 

57



PROGRESS OF PROGRAMS OR SERVICES 

Page 6 

Progress of Programs or Services Implemented in the Past Two 
Years 

SB 1383 IMPLEMENTATION 

 
MSS has implemented changes to services to prepare for and accommodate the requirements of SB 

1383.  In 2022, the company added a commercial organics recycling route to address the increased 

volume of organic materials. This route has grown from 3 days per week to 4 days per week. Other 

customers have also been absorbed into pre-existing routes. The company has observed an increase in 

contamination notices with the addition of these new accounts. Food waste recovery is new for many 

community members and those not used to having a green cart, especially those in multi-family 

housing, use it as another landfill cart. Outreach team members are working with property managers 

to train and educate and help newly subscribed properties to utilize the green cart properly.  

The company is in the process of removing organics and recycling services from customers who, after 

training, numerous notifications, and other outreach efforts, continue to contaminate their recycling 

and organics carts. This will make them non-compliant with state regulations.  The company will work 

with the jurisdictions and Zero Waste Marin on enforcement. 

 

The outreach team visited over 600 businesses and multi-family properties in 2023 to educate, train 

and help set up recovery programs. In addition, over 1900 carts were checked to ensure proper usage. 

Of these, 9% had prohibited contaminants. 

 
Exhibit 2 shows the number of commercial businesses and multi-family dwellings that are 

participating in MSS organic waste collection. Customers who self-haul or do not produce enough 

waste will be visited and this alternative compliance will be documented. Those not producing 

sufficient volume or with insufficient room to store additional containers will be issued a waiver. Non-

compliant customers who refuse to add services will require enforcement actions by the jurisdiction 

or by Zero Waste Marin.  

 

58



PROGRESS OF PROGRAMS OR SERVICES 

Page 7 

City of 

San 

Rafael

Marin 

County 

Las Gallinas 

Valley Sanitary 

District

Town of 

Ross

City of 

Larkspur

Town of 

San 

Anselmo

Town of 

Fairfax

Subject to Compliance Review 784          51            31                          13            116          86            57            

Compliant 478          45            26                          10            77            66            50            

Waivers 252          7               4                             1               38            15            7               

Not Compliant 55            -           1                             2               1               5               -           

% Compliance 93% 100% 97% 87% 99% 94% 100%

City of 

San 

Rafael

Marin 

County

Las Gallinas 

Valley Sanitary 

District

Town of 

Ross

City of 

Larkspur

Town of 

San 

Anselmo

Town of 

Fairfax

Subject to Compliance Review 338          22            7                             N/A 131          53            22            

Compliant 310          22            7                             95            53            22            

Waivers

Not Compliant 28            -           -                         36            -           -           

% Compliance 92% 100% 100% 73% 100% 100%

Commercial

Multi Family Dwellings 5 units +

Exhibit 2: SB 1383 Compliance 

 

59



ZERO WASTE PROGRAMS 

Page 8 

Description and Progress of Zero Waste Programs 

RECYCLING PROGRAMS 

 
Marin Sanitary Service continues to provide dual-stream recycling. Separating the paper and 

cardboard from glass, metal and plastic bottles and cans ensures that materials stay clean and 

maintain their value.  

One challenge the company continues to face is with non-recyclables items going into the split cart. 

This is most often non-recoverable plastics as there continues to be confusion over what is accepted. 

It also includes dirty bottles and other contaminants. Exhibit 1 shows the rise of contamination since 

2013. Fortunately, this trend has leveled out since 2018. 

 

  

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

16.00%

18.00%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Marin Recycling Center Residual (Contamination) Rates 
2011-2023

Exhibit 3 

60



ZERO WASTE PROGRAMS 

Page 9 

ORGANICS COLLECTION 

 
Organic waste is collected through three different programs, curbside green waste, commercial 

organics, and Food 2 Energy (F2E).  The POWER program is included as part of the F2E program.  

Curbside Green Waste 
 
Residential customer’s may continue to place their yard clippings along with household food waste 

into their green cart. With the implementation and enforcement effective January 1, 2024 of SB 1383, 

the company has increased information and reminders about recovering food waste and food-stained 

paper from the landfill cart and placing it in the green cart. While the company continues to see more 

food in the green cart, there has not been a significant increase in curbside organic waste tons. This 

does not necessarily reflect increased diversion of materials as green waste tons are impacted by 

weather conditions. Wet years can lead to heavier material in the carts as well as more material due 

to the increased growth.  

Commercial Organics 

The MSS outreach team has been meeting with all commercial and multi-family customers to educate 

and help ensure they are starting organic service. They provide information, assistance, and trainings 

to customers starting programs. This has resulted in 424 customers in the service area adding organics 

services in 2023. 

Food2Energy (F2E) 
 
F2E service is offered to grocery stores and restaurants to capture their back-of-house organic waste. 

Companies are now able to place their F2E material in clear plastic bags to help keep cans clean and 

keep critters out. The F2E program has also been enhanced by the addition of the aforementioned 

POWER program. 

 

61



GREEN HOUSE GAS MITIGATION 

Page 10 

Green House Gas Mitigation 

GREEN HOUSE GAS MITIGATION  

 

MSS has tracked operational emissions annually since 2006 and avoided emissions since 2009.  This 
report shows MSS has fully offset its direct emissions on average 18 times.  This is well beyond Net-
Zero.  Most emissions originate from direct mobile combustions including on and off-road vehicles.  MSS 
switched the fleet to renewable diesel in 2020, lowering overall emissions impacts.  

Exhibit 4: Emissions Reporting 

 

62



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 
 

Page 11 

Public Education Activities Undertaken During the Year 

Bill Inserts 

  

Exhibit 5: Bill Inserts Sent in 2023 

 

Fairfax San Rafael

Las Gallinas 

Valley Sanitary 

District Larkspur Ross

San 

Anselmo

County of 

Marin Grand Total

Rate Increase Notification 2,614       14,152      3,664                  2,899       804           4,479           4,248              32,860                 

Spring clean up 2,523       12,383      3,600                  2,601       785           4,185           4,135              25,088                 

Fall Clean up 2,523       10,175      3,716                  2,601       801           3,400           3,450              26,666                 

Grand Total 5,137       36,710      10,980                5,500       2,390       12,064         11,833           84,614                 

63



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 12 

 

64



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 13 

 

65



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 14 

  

 
CUSTOMERS DIRECTLY CONTACTED REGARDING DIVERSION SERVICES 
 

Contamination Program 
 
Drivers note contaminated containers. Customer service representatives and our outreach team 
follow up each day with customers on the contamination list to notify and provide education to those 
customers.  Contamination charges are applied if deemed appropriate. Education and training are 
offered to all multi-family and commercial participants. In some cases, multi-family and commercial 
customer’s recyclables or organics carts are removed if they do not show progress or an effort to clean 
up contamination. During 2023 there were 5,425 separate actions taken to minimize contamination.  

66



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 15 

 
 

Free Kitchen Compost Pail Give-Out 
 
The company distributed over 450 kitchen pails during 45 multi-family trainings, including apartments, 
HOAs, and mobile homes.  Tenants were offered the option of online training and an additional 125 
pails were distributed to tenants. 
 

Trainings  
 
The outreach team trains businesses and other organizations.  Presentations are given in both English 
and Spanish by request. Some of our trainings included: 

• January 2023- Held in-person training for Multi-Cultural Center of Marin for 15 board of 

directors. 

• February 2023- Presentation for 30 clients and staff at Cedars of Marin. 

• Trainings included: 

o  Windchime of Marin nursing home staff  

o Strip mall tenants 

o San Rafael police & fire departments 

o AAA office staff 

o Retailers including Home Goods and Scandinavian Designs 

o Restaurants including Depot Garden Café, and Saigon Village 

o Grocery stores including United Markets, Whole Foods, and Mollie Stone’s. 

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000

Customers Charged Contamination Fee

Customer Follow-up Calls

Driver Reported Contaminations

Cart Hangers

Contamination Prevention Efforts

2021 2022 2023

Exhibit 6: Contamination Prevention 

 

67



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 16 

Social Media 
 
The company has focused on digital methods for communicating with customers. This includes using 

social media channels to provide information, reminders, and tips to divert waste from the landfill. 

  Facebook Instagram Linkedin X 

Followers 864 1300 493 482 

Posts 27 128 1 27 

Engagement 578 371 10 N/A 

Reach 12,800 10,000 165 N/A 

 

 

Exhibit 7: Social Media Activity 

 

68



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 17 

WASTE AUDITS AND RESULTS 
 
SB 1383 regulations require that jurisdictions conduct mandated SB 1383 route reviews by random 

selection. SB 1383 route reviews are defined as a visual inspection of containers along a route for the 

purpose of determining container contamination and proper sorting of material or both. If 

contaminants are found, the route auditor takes a picture of the material and mails a letter to the 

customer for educational purposes. During 2023 MSS route auditors inspected 2068 individual carts. 

Results are shown in Exhibit 8. 

 

Properly Sorted Prohibited Contaminants 

Material:  Total Total 

cardboard recycling  0 11 

containers recycling  23 26 

food waste 6 0 

landfill  649 47 

mixed organics  615 21 

mixed recycling  578 52 

paper recycling  31 9 

Total 1902 166 

 
 
In addition to SB 1383 route audits, MSS auditors ride along with drivers to verify current services 

within the MSS billing system match the service in which the customer is receiving. Exhibit 9 shows 

the results of these efforts. Customers are sent notices of the discrepancy and given an opportunity to 

modify their service or pay the correct amount for the services received.   

 

Route Audit Discovered Service Discrepancies 

Service Discrepancy-Less Service than pays for- smaller cart size  9 

Service Discrepancy-More Service than covered for in service-larger cart size  64 

Total Discrepancies Discovered 73 

Exhibit 8: SB 1383 Tracking Totals 2023 

 

Exhibit 9: Service Discrepancies 

 

69



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 18 

COLLECTION NOTIFICATION TAGS 
 
Collection notification tags are placed for customers whose service is not completed as a means of 
educating customers on proper container set out, contamination, or other reasons. Exhibit 10 shows 
the cart tags left with customers in 2023. 
 

  Number of Tags Left 

Notification Reason:   
CARDBOARD 
PLACEMENT 30 

CART COMPACTED 34 

CART CONTAMINATED 120 

CART DAMAGED 24 

CART NOT OUT 1 

CART OVERLOADED 25 

CART OVERRLOADED 1 

CART PLACEMENT 38 

Grand Total 289 

 

COMMUNITY INFORMATION AND EVENTS 
 

• Held an in-person training at CreArt Early Education & Preschool staff. 

• Presented to a class of 25 students at Terra Linda High School’s, MSEL program. 

• Tabled at Earth Day events at San Rafel High School, San Rafael Clean Earth Day and BioMarin. 

• Presented recycling, composting and waste reduction assembly for over 200 students at St. 

Isabella’s K-8th School. 

• Distributed information and interacted with customers at events including: 

o ExtraFood.org volunteer appreciation event. 

o San Rafael movie night. 

o San Rafael Chamber business showcase. 

o Children for Change Challenge. 

o County of Marin Ember Stomp. 

o Farm Day. 

o Fairfax Take Back Day. 

  

Exhibit 10: Collection Notification Tags 

 

70



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 19 

• Over 300 customers participated in our annual Customer Appreciation Day. 

o Held three compost/recycling training classes. 

o Gave facility tours with driver presentation. 

o Compost give-away. 

 

  

71



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 20 

On April 19th, outreach team member Ruben Hernandez participated in an Earth Day radio interview 

“What you should know about recycling” alongside the Multi-Cultural Center of Marin. 

 

 
 

Join our host Brenda Camarena along with special guests Ruben Hernandez and Hugo 
Mata who will share information and resources in Marin County. Tune in to the live 
stream of Body Heart Community, a Spanish-language talk show offering health and 
safety resources, information, and solutions. Every Wednesday at 11 am.  On 
YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCdOpLdVlWQWQUVHnYLFCwWA  
 
 

WEBSITE 
 
There were approximately 91,000 visitors to the www.marinsanitary.com website in 2023.  After the 
homepage, visitor’s number one page viewed continues to be the Support/Pay My Bill page followed 
by the residential information page. 
 
Where Does It Go Joe? is an online resource and mobile application designed for MSS customers. This 
tool allows customers to search materials to determine if they are recyclable, compostable or belong 
in the landfill. This app is available to anyone in the MSS service area.  In 2023 the top searched items 
are listed in Exhibit 9: 
 
  

72

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCdOpLdVlWQWQUVHnYLFCwWA


PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 21 

 
In addition to the material search tool, the app provides residential customers with the option to get 
service day information, pay their bill and to set up weekly reminders by email, text or phone call. As 
of the end of 2023, 13,826 customers receive weekly reminders. 
 

NEWSLETTERS 
 
Newsletters are sent to all MSS residential customers in the spring and fall.  Below are the newsletters 
sent in 2023: 

Exhibit 11: Top Items Search, Where Does It Go Joe? 

 

73



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 22 

 

74



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 23 

 

75



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 24 

 

76



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 25 

 
  

77



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 

Page 26 

TOURS 
 
The company provided 40 tours to community groups on 2023.  Within the company’s jurisdiction 
tours were provided for the following:  

• College of Marin and Dominican University environmental studies classes; 30 students. 

• 45 high school students, 106 middles school students and 414 K-5th grade students. 

• Brandeis School, Caulbridge, Marin Academy, Marin Primary, Marin Waldorf, St. Anselm’s, St. 

Patrick’s, St. Raphael’s, Marin School of Environmental Leadership, and San Domenico. 

Outside of our jurisdiction, over 300 students toured our facilities including Marin Country Day, Bel 
Aire, Lycee Francais, Spring Hills, and Town School in San Francisco. 
 

OTHER ACTIVITIES RELATED TO COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

City of 

Larkspur

City of San 

Rafael

Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District

Marin 

County

Town of 

Fairfax

Town of 

Ross

Town of San 

Anselmo

Grand 

Total

Activity Type:

Email 124 666 22 29 123 8 65 1037

Issue SB 1383 Waiver 8 133 1 1 1 8 152

Letter 3 5 8

Phone Call 122 719 32 30 45 12 61 1021

Revoke SB 1383 Waiver 1 2 1 1 1 6

Site Visit 34 515 12 11 12 3 23 610

Training 3 66 2 1 1 1 74

Verify Food Recovery Contract 1 1

Verify SB 1383 Waiver 10 110 1 1 7 129

Voicemail 32 228 13 12 14 1 20 320

Grand Total 337 2445 84 85 198 24 185 3358

Number of Activities by Jurisdiction

Exhibit 12: Outreach Activities 

 

78



RECYCLING AND ORGANICS PARTICIPATION 

Page 27 

Recycling and Organics Program Participation “Set Outs” 

RESIDENTIAL   

 

All residential customers are offered three services as part of the bundled rate.  These include a gray 

(landfill or garbage) cart, a dual sort split body recycling cart and a green organics cart.  The bundled 

rate is based on the size of the landfill cart.  Exhibits 13, 14 and 15 detail the total number of carts by 

material and size subscribed to by current MSS residential customers. 

Residential Weekly Landfill Service (# of Carts) 

  2021 2022 2023 23 vs 22 (%) 23 Percent of Total (%) 

Cart Size:           

20 Gallon 
     
6,070  

     
6,167  

     
6,141  0% 20% 

32 Gallon 
   
17,857  

   
17,553  

   
17,468  0% 58% 

64 Gallon 
     
6,098  

     
6,088  

     
6,025  -1% 20% 

96 Gallon 
         
648  

         
636  

         
608  -4% 2% 

Total 
   
30,673  

   
30,444  

   
30,242  -1% 100% 

 
  

Exhibit 13: Residential Landfill Cart Service Subscription 

 

79



RECYCLING AND ORGANICS PARTICIPATION 

Page 28 

Residential Weekly Dual Sort Recycling Service (# of Carts) 

  2021 2022 2023 23 vs 22 (%) 23 Percent of Total (%) 

Cart Size:           

5 Gallon 
         
506  

         
460  

         
346  -25% 1% 

32 Gallon 
           
23  

           
17  

             
8  -53% 0% 

64 Gallon 
   
26,910  

   
26,291  

   
25,390  -3% 84% 

96 Gallon 
     
3,467  

     
3,977  

     
4,654  17% 15% 

Total 
   
30,906  

   
30,745  

   
30,398  -1% 100% 

 
 

 
 

Residential Weekly Organic Service (# of Carts) 

  2021 2022 2023 23 vs 22 (%) 23 Percent of Total (%) 

Cart Size:           

32 Gallon 
     
2,216  

     
2,298  

     
2,846  24% 9% 

64 Gallon 
   
33,678  

   
33,449  

   
29,448  -12% 91% 

96 Gallon 
           
31  

           
29  

           
25  -14% 0% 

Total 
   
35,925  

   
35,776  

   
32,319  -10% 100% 

 

Scheduled Curbside Clean-up Program and Bulky Item Collection 
 

This program offers all residential customers the opportunity to set out additional recycling, yard waste 

and landfill waste twice per year for the removal of excess materials.  

Exhibit 14: Residential Recycling Cart Service Subscription 

 

Exhibit 15: Residential Organic Cart Service Subscription 

 

80



RECYCLING AND ORGANICS PARTICIPATION 

Page 29 

Bulky items like mattresses, appliances, and furniture are not collected during curbside clean-ups. These 

collections must be scheduled separately. Residential customers are allowed two (2) scheduled bulky 

item collections of up to two (2) items each time at no extra charge. 

 

Annual Dedicated Program Stats (Tons) 

  2021 2022 2023 

Program Type:       

Scheduled Clean-Ups 301 229 215 

Bulky Items 187 116 138 

Illegal Dumping 36 24 25 

Total Tons Recycled 267 185 192 

Bulky Items Collected (Number of Items) 5,160 4,774 4,327 
 

COMMERCIAL 

 
Commercial businesses are offered recycling services as part of a bundled rate.   One of two organics 

programs is offered to all commercial customers.  Food 2 Energy (F2E) for businesses with pre-consumer 

food waste and commercial organics for all others.  Exhibit 17 compares the total volume of material 

collected from commercial customers over the past three years.  In reviewing the data presented in 

Exhibits 17 it was discovered that some accounts were misrepresented in their service designation. This 

has been corrected in the revised exhibit.  Numbers are presented showing the old methodology to 

show the change from the previous year along with a revised reporting for 2023 which will be used 

going forward. 

  

Exhibit 16: Curbside Collection and Bulky Item Participation 

 

81



RECYCLING AND ORGANICS PARTICIPATION 

Page 30 

 

Commercial Weekly Service (yd3) 

  2021 2022 2023 23 vs 22 (%) 

Service Type:         

Landfill      8,188       8,045  
     
8,121  1% 

Recycling      5,354       5,368  
     
5,485  2% 

Organic          805           892  
         
927  4% 

Total    14,347     14,305  
   
14,095  -1% 

*Year-End Snapshot of Service Levels      
 

Commercial Weekly Service (yd3)     

  2023     

Service Type:       

Landfill         8,121      

Recycling         5,485      

Organic**            828      

Total      14,434      

**Revised service from 927 yd3 in 2023 due to re-evaluation of service types. 
 

  

 

  

Exhibit 17 revised: Commercial Weekly Service by Type* 

 

Exhibit 17: Commercial Weekly Service by Type* 

 

82



RECYCLING AND ORGANICS PARTICIPATION 

Page 31 

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING 

 
Multi-family Dwellings (MFDs) are offered recycling and organics services as part of a bundled rate.  
Each property may have up to 4 organics carts at no additional charge. If more carts are needed, they 
are available for a monthly rental charge. In addition, after attending a workshop, MFD tenants 
receive kitchen pails for the collection of compostable materials inside their home.  Exhibit 18 
compares the total volume of material collected from MFD customers over the past three years. As 
with the commercial accounts, this has been revised in 2023. 
 

Multi-family Weekly Service (yd3) 

  2021 2022 2023 23 vs 22 (%) 

Service Type:         

Landfill 
   
3,766  

   
3,851  

   
3,840  0% 

Recycling 
   
1,998  

   
2,035  

   
2,125  4% 

Organic 
      
481  

      
563  

      
600  7% 

Total 
   
6,245  

   
6,449  

   
6,565  2% 

*Year-End Snapshot of Service Levels     
 

Multifamily Weekly Service (yd3)       

  2023     

Service Type:       

Landfill 
        
3,840      

Recycling 
        
2,125      

Organic** 
           
607      

Total 
        
6,572      

*Year-End Snapshot of Service Levels       

**Revised service from 600 yd3 in 2023 due to re-evaluation of service types. 

Exhibit 18: Multi-family Weekly Service by Type* 

 

Exhibit 18 revised: Multi-family Weekly Service by Type* 

 

83



PUBLIC EDUCATION ACTIVITIES 
 

Page 32 

Year-Over-Year Change in Customer Account Data 

OVERALL CUSTOMER ACCOUNT DATA 

Customer account information is stated below. Customer numbers have remained consistent year-
over-year. 

 

New Starts  Closures 

  Total   Total  

Customer Type:   Customer Type:   

Residential 
        
1,705   Residential  

        
1,796  

Commercial Business  
           
127   Commercial Business   

           
128  

Multi-family 
Dwellings  

                
9   Multi-family Dwellings   

              
16  

Total 
        
1,841    

        
1,940  

 
 

Residential Commercial Multi-Family Residential Commercial Multi-Family

Fairfax 2,519           83                  27                    2,512           83                  27                    

Larkspur 2,560           180                159                 2,565           180                158                 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 3,644           54                  8                      3,637           55                  8                      

Marin County 4,138           84                  34                    4,116           86                  34                    

Ross 801              21                  -                  797              19                  -                  

San Anselmo 4,188           212                87                    4,158           207                87                    

San Rafael 12,407        1,390            441                 12,401        1,389            441                 

2022 2023

Exhibit 19: YOY Customer Account Data 

 

Exhibit 20: New Starts and Account Closures by Customer Type 

 

84



RECYCLING RATES 

Page 33 

Recycling Rates 

RECYCLING RATES BY WEIGHT AND BY VOLUME 

 

Exhibit 21 lists the tonnage information for the service area.  

 

Exhibit 22 breaks down the tonnage by jurisdiction. The tons and diversion presented are 

only estimates.  Company routes go through multiple jurisdictions, the tonnage is 

calculated by jurisdiction based on an allocation tied to the quantity and size of dumpsters 

by customer. However, some containers are less than full and some are over-filled. In 

addition, the Materials Recovery Facility (MRF or the indoor dump) tons are estimated by 

location specifically for unincorporated Marin County, San Anselmo, San Rafael, and the 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District as it is often not possible for Marin Resource Recovery 

booth staff to determine which customers in San Anselmo and San Rafael are in 

unincorporated County or Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District boundaries.  MRF or indoor 

dump diversion is calculated at 74% based on the Q4 2023 diversion calculation reported 

on our website at https://marinresourcerecoverycenter.com/mobius_cms/wp-

content/uploads/2024/02/Q4-2023-Recycling-Certification.pdf. 

  

2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023

Tons Collected:

Curbside Organics (Food & Yard waste)* 23,214 22,574 24,456 1,222    1,287    1,287    24,436    23,861 25,744 

Curbside Containers Recycling 5,540    4,980    4,825    2,049    1,785    1,785    7,590      6,765    6,610    

Curbside Fiber Recycling 5,627    5,162    5,158    2,081    1,908    1,908    7,709      7,070    7,066    

Curbside Cardboard Recycling *N/A *N/A *N/A 6,809    4,117    3,928    6,809      4,117    3,928    

Transfer Station 26,452 24,588 24,463 21,751 21,813 21,879 48,203    46,401 46,342 

Commercial Food Waste (F2E) *N/A *N/A *N/A 2,247    2,385    2,608    2,247      2,385    2,608    

Commercial processed at MRRC *N/A *N/A *N/A 5,562    5,008    4,595    5,562      5,008    4,595    

Total Tons Collected 60,834 57,304 58,903 41,721 38,303 37,990 102,555 95,607 96,893 

Total Tons Diverted 34,382 32,716 34,440 17,912 15,107 14,842 52,294    47,824 49,282 
* Commercial yard waste is co-collected with 

residential yard waste. Tonnage is included with 

Residential.

Recycling Rate 57% 57% 58% 43% 39% 39% 51% 50% 51%

Weight Based Recycling Rates by Sector (Tons)

Residential Commercial/MF Total

Exhibit 21: 2023 MSS Service Area Disposal and Recycling Rates (Tons) 

 

85

https://marinresourcerecoverycenter.com/mobius_cms/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Q4-2023-Recycling-Certification.pdf
https://marinresourcerecoverycenter.com/mobius_cms/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Q4-2023-Recycling-Certification.pdf


RECYCLING RATES 

Page 34 

Weight Based Sector Rates by Jurisdiction (Tons) 

  Organic Recycling Landfill Indoor Dump Total Diversion (%) 

Tons Collected:             

Fairfax 
     

1,957  
        

1,501  
     

2,253  
                

1,322  
       

7,034  63% 

Larkspur 
     

2,398  
        

2,410  
     

5,546  
                

1,849  
     

12,204  51% 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District 

     
2,813  

        
1,545  

     
3,048  

              
33,931  

     
41,337  71% 

Marin - Unincorporated 
     

4,350  
        

2,168  
     

4,209  
              

38,846  
     

49,573  71% 

Ross 
         

916  
            

441  
         

674  
                

2,342  
       

4,372  71% 

San Anselmo 
     

4,208  
        

2,011  
     

3,732  
              

40,827  
     

50,778  72% 

San Rafael 
   

11,709  
      

10,855  
   

28,148  
            

130,506  
   

181,218  66% 

Totals 
   

28,351  
      

20,931  
   

47,611  
            

249,623  
   

346,516  68% 

 

Exhibit 23 shows the landfill pounds per person per day for the service area.  Based on the total 

tons and population estimates generation remains unchanged. To estimate for the population 

the company must use unincorporated County population assumptions as MSS does not 

service the entire unincorporated area. 

  

Exhibit 22: 2023 MSS Service Area Disposal and Recycling Rates by Jurisdiction (Tons) 

 

86



RECYCLING RATES 

Page 35 

  2021 2022 2023 

Population* 
   
113,722  

   
114,423  

   
115,156  

Landfilled (Tons) 
     
50,261  

     
47,783  

     
47,611  

Tons disposed per Capita 
          
0.44  

          
0.42  

          
0.41  

Pounds per person per day disposal (PPD) 
          
2.42  

          
2.29  

          
2.27  

*Estimate based on available Census Data       
 

 
Exhibit 24 details the commodity pricing for 2023. All commodity pricing is down from last year except 
for glass. However, 2021 and 2022 were exceptionally high years for many materials, with cardboard 
at record high levels in 2021.  Commodity markets remain highly volatile, therefore price fluctuations 
are expected to continue in the foreseeable future. 
 

Annual Average Commodity Price ($) 

  2021 2022 2023 23 vs 22 (%) 

Commodity Type:         

Cardboard  $     184.09   $     142.33   $     137.34  -4% 

Newspaper  $     139.90   $     167.87   $     106.01  -37% 

Office Paper  $     211.72   $     278.58   $     239.31  -14% 

Mixed Paper  $        94.00   $     109.23   $        57.58  -47% 

Aluminum Cans  $  1,329.00   $  1,628.48   $  1,307.23  -20% 

Glass  $        29.55   $        40.00   $        41.94  5% 

HDPE # 2 Natural (Jugs)  $  1,375.00   $     937.65   $     855.03  -9% 

HDPE # 2 Colors (Jugs)  $     683.00   $     288.52   $     235.25  -18% 

PET # 1 (Bottles)  $     361.00   $     383.98   $     173.48  -55% 

Mixed Rigid Plastics (#3-7)  $        60.00   $               -     $               -    - 

 
 
 

 

Exhibit 23: Landfill Pounds Per Person Per Day  

: Landfill Pounds per Person per Day (PPD) 

 

Exhibit 24: Commodity Price Changes 2021-2023 Average Price Per Ton 

 

87



OTHER INFORMATION 

Page 36 

Other Information (Quarterly Report Data) 

RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL/MULTI-FAMILY CUSTOMER CALLS 

 
In 2023, MSS received 70,832 calls compared to 77,123 in 2022.  The following list presents the most 

common types of calls; start/stop service, cart exchanges, change of service, billing inquiries, or 

general education questions about collection and program information. The average time to answer 

has decreased by 3 seconds in 2023 to 10 seconds. The decrease in call volume and answer time is 

due an improvement in our customer service and driver training. 

The total number of complaint calls are detailed in Exhibit 25. Missed collections and broken 

containers are the primary reasons for complaints.  In the majority of cases, the drivers were able to 

empty the missed containers on the same service day or the next business day.  All broken containers 

were either repaired or replaced.  In addition, MSS had 151 documented compliments for staff in 

2023.  A detailed complaint log is available for review upon request. 

 

  

2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023

Jurisdiction:

County of Marin 471          542          469          608          631          599          20            25            17            24            50            34            

San Rafael 1,450      1,245      1,539      2,031      2,064      2,039      66            80            71            79            83            44            

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 325          290          247          534          634          666          9               9               5               14            25            16            

Ross 92            129          122          115          113          109          1               6               3               5               4               8               

Larkspur 257          308          362          262          350          322          13            23            29            12            26            12            

San Anselmo 452          968          806          1,038      1,155      1,104      33            40            34            31            34            21            

Fairfax 333          306          297          271          306          351          15            18            14            18            26            16            

MSS Service Area Totals 3,380      3,788      3,842      4,859      5,253      5,190      157          201          173          183          248          151          

Compliments Missed Collections   Broken Containers  Misc. Service Issues 

Exhibit 25: Compliments and Complaints by Type  

 

88



OTHER INFORMATION 

Page 37 

REPORTS OF INJURIES AND DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

 
The company has put a renewed emphasis on safety and is seeing a benefit to these efforts. In 2023, 
route supervisor, Stu Coley, was promoted to the position of safety manager. Through his efforts, the 
company will be training dedicated drivers in J.J. Keller’s Safe and Smart Driver Training Program. This 
increased focus on training will help to ensure our new drivers get the foundations of safe driving and 
awareness and more tenured drivers continue to improve and perfect their driving skills. In 2023 the 
number of preventable accidents and damage events dropped by almost 40%. Injuries have also 
consistently declined since 2021.  

  2021 2022 2023 

 Preventable Damage/Accident  
              
50  

              
56  

              
35  

 Non-preventable Damage/Accident  
              
10  

              
20  

                
7  

 Work Comp Injuries  
              
24  

              
15  

              
12  

 

HHW FACILITY PARTICIPATION NUMBERS 

 
Usage of the county’s HHW facility is a part of the service offerings available to all county residents. 
Below is a list of the total number of participants by jurisdiction at the facility. Unincorporated Marin 
County includes all of the county, and not just MSS service area.  
 

HHW PARTICIPANTS BY CITY       

City:         

Fairfax             1,345        

Larkspur             1,348        

Ross                554        

San Anselmo             2,209        

San Rafael            9,005        

Unincorporated Marin County*            2,194        

Total Participants          22,930        

*Includes all unincorporated Marin County, not just MSS service area   

Exhibit 26: Injuries and Accidents in 2023 

 

Exhibit 27: Injuries and Accidents in 2023 

 

89



CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

Page 38 

Contact Information 

JUSTIN WILCOCK 
DIRECTOR OF GENERAL 
OPERATIONS 

 JASON RALEIGH 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 PATTY GARBARINO 
PRESIDENT 

     

Tel 415-755-9528 

Justin.Wilcock@marinsanitary.com 

 Tel 415-456-2601 

Jason.Raleigh@marinsanitary.com 

 Tel 415-485-5648 

Patty.Garbarino@marinsanitary.com 

 

90



 

 
 

 

8/15/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2 

91



92



93



94



95



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\08152024\ASR 4th QTR Treasurer's Report June 2024.docx Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 

Meeting Date: August 15, 2024 

Re: Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Reports as of June 30, 2024 

Item Type:   Consent   Action  Information  X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Receive the Treasurer’s report for the quarter ending June 30, 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Board Policy F-20-10, Financial Reporting, and Board Policy F-70-120, Investment Reporting, 
require that quarterly reports be submitted to the Board. It is prudent and beneficial to present 
these reports to the Board at the same time. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
Pursuant to the State of California Government Code Section 56300, the District’s investment 
policy adopted on July 21, 2022, and industry best practices, staff has prepared a quarterly 
financial report as of June 30, 2024. The attached report includes bank and investment accounts 
managed by the District. 
 

As specified in California Government Code Section 53646(e), if all funds are placed in the State of 
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), in accounts insured or guaranteed pursuant to 
Section 14858 of the Financial Code, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a county investment pool, 
the reporting elements may be replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions. 
 
The District maintains two debt reserve funds, equal to one year’s debt service for the State 
Revolving Fund and Bank of Marin loans. The quarterly account statements for the two Bank of 
Marin Certificates of Deposit accounts are included as part of this Treasurer’s Report. 
 
The District diversified from its primary investment account, LAIF, in January 2024. Two additional 
pooled investment accounts, California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System (California 
CLASS) and California Asset Management Program (CAMP), were established in December 2023. 
Below are the investment summaries for the quarter ending June 30, 2024: 
 

• LAIF interest rate was 4.55%, up from 4.30% in December. Quarterly interest earned from 
LAIF was $20,700.08. The latest quarterly LAIF Remittance Advice statement from the 
California State Controller’s Office is attached.  

 
 

Item Number_________3.4_____ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

96

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\08152024\ASR 4th QTR Treasurer's Report June 2024.docx Page 2 of 3 

 

• California CLASS average monthly yield as of June 30 was 5.4006%. Interest dividend 
reinvestment is reported monthly. Total interest earned in the quarter was $123,025. 
Attached are the account summary pages from the monthly California CLASS statements 
this quarter. 
 

• CAMP monthly distribution yield was 5.43% as of June 30. Total dividend and income 
earned in the quarter was $168,497. Attached are the account detail pages from the 
monthly CAMP statements this quarter. Restricted reserves are held in CAMP. Restricted 
reserves of $4,513,337 approved in the fiscal year 2023-2024 budget were transferred to 
CAMP in June.   

 
Total investments of $27,762,838 are held in the District’s investment accounts and two restricted 
debt service accounts, which reflect an increase of $3,687,786 during the previous twelve-month 
period. The increase reflects the District’s commitment to build its designated reserves. 
 

The District’s investments comply with its investment policy and the District has sufficient funds 
available to meet its obligations for the next six months. 
   
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
District staff is required to provide a quarterly summary report to the Board. The actual revenues 
and expenditures to budgeted amounts, including relevant information on debt proceeds and debt 
service payments, were detailed in the adopted fiscal year 2024-2025 budget report presented to 
the Board on June 20, 2024. The attached Budget Worksheet provides updated budget revenue 
and expenditure actuals for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. Operating expenditures are 
shown by department and fund, and include expenditures incurred before the end of the fiscal 
year but paid over the last two months.  
 
Cash Balance  
The District has $32,354,931 of cash and investments on hand as of June 30, 2024; an increase 
of $1,663,903 from June 30, 2023. The operating account balance fluctuates based on operating 
needs. It is common for the balance to change over the prior quarter or year. Of the cash on 
hand, the District has designated portions of it for the following uses:  
 

• Reserves of $15,724,308 pursuant to the District’s policies. 

• Connection fees of $1,066,776 which are available only to fund capacity related projects. 

• Debt service restricted reserve funds of $913,581 as required by loan covenants. 

• Accumulation of $415,473 in cash for the Private Sewer Lateral Assistance program. 

• Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement Fund, created in May 2023, to hold 
LGVSD and Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD) contributions for future capital 
expenditures to the Recycled Water Treatment Facility. LGVSD’s contribution for 2023-
2024 was $14,437. MMWD’s 2023-2024 contribution of $37,167 was received in July 
and will be reflected in the next quarterly treasurer’s report. 

• Special assessment funds for operation and maintenance of the pump stations at Marin 
Lagoon and Captains Cove of $13,009 and $2,403, respectively. 

 

97



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\08152024\ASR 4th QTR Treasurer's Report June 2024.docx Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Marin Lagoon and Captain’s Cove Surcharges 
Quarterly true-ups for both Marin Lagoon and Captain’s Cove were completed, with balance 
transfers finalized on August 5, 2024. Surcharge revenue is received along with sewer service 
charge revenue into the operating fund, and transfers are required to move funds to the 
appropriate restricted fund. Operating and capital expenses paid out of the operating fund are 
recovered from the respective restricted fund. 

The cost for the Marin Lagoon Pump Station #1 Upgrade Project #18360-01, completed in June 
2022, exceeded the amount of funding held in the restricted Marin Lagoon fund. Expenses were 
paid from the general operating fund and have been recovered annually from the surcharge 
revenue as it is received. The outstanding balance to be recovered over the next 4-5 years is 
$91,348.49. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
No impact for receiving report. 
 
 
Attachments: 

A. Treasure’s Report – Operating and Investment Accounts as of June 30, 2024 
B. Bank of Marin Certificate of Deposit xx5679 Statement 03/31/24 – 06/30/24 
C. Bank of Marin Certificate of Deposit xx6073 Statement 03/31/24 – 06/30/24 
D. Local Agency Investment Fund xx-005 Remittance Advice for quarter ending 6/30/24 
E. California CLASS – Account Statements for April, May, and June 2024 
F. CAMP Account Statements for April, May, and June 2024 
G. Budget Worksheet – Actual to Budget Comparison - Period for 7/23 to 6/24 
H. Marin Lagoon – True Up – Quarterly Transfer ending June 30, 2024 
I. Captain’s Cove  – True Up – Quarterly Transfer ending June 30, 2024 

 

98



I. Account Summary: Bank and Investment Accounts

2023 2024

Summary of Bank and Investment Accounts

OPERATIONS:
Bank of Marin

Operating Accounts 4,609,199 2,277,074            (2,332,125)        
Liquid Savings 226,493 234,936               8,443 
Private Sewer Lateral Rehab 400,129 415,473               15,344               
Surcharge-Marin Lagoon 10,538 13,009 2,471 
Surcharge-Captains Cove 3,657 2,403 (1,254)               
Connection Fee 797,904 1,066,776            268,872             
Capital Project Recycled Water Reserve Fund 23 14,437 14,414               

Petty cash 145 89 (56)
Investment Accounts -

Debt Service Reserve-Recycled Water 605,626 608,633 3,007 
Debt Service Reserve-SRF Loan 303,441 304,948               1,507 
Local Agency Investment Fund 23,165,985 1,839,317            (21,326,668)      
California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System - 9,247,475            9,247,475          
California Asset Management Program - 15,762,465          15,762,465        

Cash and Investments 30,123,140$        31,787,036$        1,663,896$        

IBANK ISRF AGREEMENT: 567,760$             567,760$             (0)$

RESTRICTED 2017 BOND 

US Bank Bond & Cost of Issuance Funds 129$  135$  7$  

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 30,691,029$        32,354,931$        1,663,903$        

II. Account Activity for Bank of Marin Accounts

Bank of Marin operating account activity is for paying regular operating expenses of the District.  Funds are 
transferred from the Liquid Savings to the Operating account as needed.

Statement of Compliance:
The investments accounts are invested in compliance with the District's investment policy, adopted at the 
July 21, 2022  Board meeting and California Government Code Section 53600. In addition, the District does 

have the financial ability to meet  its cash flow requirements for the next six months.

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager Curtis Paxton, General Manager

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Treasurer's Report - Operating and Investment Accounts

June 30, 2024

June Change from 
Previous YearAccounts Summary

8%
4%

86%

2%

2024

16%

4%

78%

2%

2023

Operating

Restricted

Investment

Other / IBank

Q:\ACCOUNTING\QUARTERLY FINANCIALS\2023-24\4th Qtr June\4th QTR Treasurers Report June 2024 8/5/2024 3:27 PM

Attachment A

99



Account Number: xxxx-xx5679 
Statement Period: 03/31/24 - 06/30/24 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
"BANK OF MARIN DEBT RESERVE"
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CD0003-715679

Total Current Balance $608,633.22
Total Interest Year To Date $1,497.35

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
03/31 Beginning Balance $607,892.31
04/30 Interest 740.91 608,633.22
06/30 Ending Balance $608,633.22

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $571,431.58
Current Balance $608,633.22
Total Interest Year To Date $1,497.35
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $569,178.89
Original Deposit Date 08/01/12
Last Maturity Date 08/01/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 08/01/25

00008071 00026417 0001 0001 BOMB1110062924062757 01

00008071 BOMB1110062924062757 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110111110100111100
101000110011010110101101
101111001111010000100000
101111010100110011001111
101100011000100000000100
101100000001000101101111
100011100100001011110110
110010001100101100010001
101110100000001010111010
111100010010110011101011
111010000101001101000110
100001010011101001000101
100100011010101010010000
100100010000110101000001
110001010100011111000010
110010110000001110011001
100001100110011110101100
101010011100000010000111
111101101001100111110010
101100000000110110110101
101011110111100010010010
111111111111111111111111

Attachment B

100



Account Number: xxxx-xx6073 
Statement Period: 03/31/24 - 06/30/24 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CD0003-716073

Total Current Balance $304,948.06
Total Interest Year To Date $754.35

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
03/31 Beginning Balance $304,572.71
04/29 Interest 375.35 304,948.06
06/30 Ending Balance $304,948.06

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $286,304.76
Current Balance $304,948.06
Total Interest Year To Date $754.35
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $286,304.76
Original Deposit Date 07/30/13
Last Maturity Date 07/30/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 07/30/25

00008074 00026423 0001 0001 BOMB1110062924062757 01

00008074 BOMB1110062924062757 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110111110100111100
101000110011010110101101
101111001111010000100000
101111010100110011001111
101100011010000000000100
101100000001000101101111
100011100100001011110010
110010001100101100000001
101110100000001010000010
111100010010010001010011
111010010100110011100000
100001001010000011101101
100100010110111000011000
100100010001011001000001
110001110111100101100110
110010000111010111010001
100000000000100010100100
101001000010100011001001
110001101101001111100010
101000010010110011111101
100011110111100010000010
111111111111111111111111

Attachment C

101



MALIA M. COHEN

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name LAS GALINAS VLY SANITARY DIST 

Account Number xx-xx-005

As of 07/15/2024, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 06/30/2024.

Earnings Ratio .00012419067099490

Interest Rate 4.55%

Dollar Day Total $ 166,679,796.71

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 1,839,317.05

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 20,700.08

7/15/24, 8:33 AM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

Attachment D

102



LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

April 30, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Number:8-0001

Account Statement

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  5.4028%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 9,124,450.86 0.00 0.00 40,407.93 164,858.79 9,125,797.79 9,164,858.79

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

04/01/2024 Beginning Balance 9,124,450.86

04/30/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 40,407.93

04/30/2024 Ending Balance 9,164,858.79

Attachment E

103



LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

May 31, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Number:8-0001

Account Statement

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  5.3943%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 9,164,858.79 0.00 0.00 41,874.03 206,732.82 9,166,209.57 9,206,732.82

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

05/01/2024 Beginning Balance 9,164,858.79

05/31/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 41,874.03

05/31/2024 Ending Balance 9,206,732.82

104



LGVSD�Prime

Tel���������	
���	 www�californiaclass�com

Account�Statement

June�	
��
�

Page��of�	

Account�Number�������

Account�Summary Average�Monthly�Yield���������	

Beginning

Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income

Earned

Income

Earned

YTD

Average�Daily

Balance

Month�End

Balance

California�CLASS �������	�
�� �
�� �
�� ������
� ������
�� ���������
�� ��������
��

Transaction�Activity

Transaction�Date Transaction�Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction�Number

���������� Beginning�Balance �������	�
��

���	������ Income�Dividend�Reinvestment ������
�

���	������ Ending�Balance ��������
��

105



For the Month Ending April 30, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 11,080,630.11 Opening Balance

04/30/24 05/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  49,431.57  11,130,061.68 

 11,130,061.68 

 11,130,061.68 

 11,130,061.68 

 11,082,277.83 

 171,695.68 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 11,130,061.68 

 0.00 

 49,431.57 

 11,130,061.68 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 49,431.57 

 11,080,630.11 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

April July-April

 5.44%

Account 6222-01 Page 2

Attachment F

106



For the Month Ending May 31, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 11,130,061.68 Opening Balance

05/31/24 06/03/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  51,214.79  11,181,276.47 

 11,181,276.47 

 11,181,276.47 

 11,181,276.47 

 11,131,713.77 

 222,910.47 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 11,181,276.47 

 0.00 

 51,214.79 

 11,181,276.47 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 51,214.79 

 11,130,061.68 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

May July-May

 5.43%

Account 6222-01 Page 2

107



For the Month Ending June 30, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 11,181,276.47 Opening Balance

06/04/24 06/04/24 Purchase - Incoming Wires  1.00  4,513,337.00  15,694,613.47 

06/28/24 07/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  67,851.03  15,762,464.50 

 15,762,464.50 

 15,762,464.50 

 15,762,464.50 

 15,250,064.87 

 290,761.50 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 15,762,464.50 

 0.00 

 67,851.03 

 15,762,464.50 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 4,581,188.03 

 11,181,276.47 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

June July-June

 5.43%

Account 6222-01 Page 2

108



Page: 1Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

General

Sewer Use Charges

10-310-4110 SSC Special Assessment-Current 17,354,590.10 17,876,612.00 17,876,612.00 97.08

10-310-4115 Sewer Service Chrg Direct Bill 1,087,240.33 1,066,710.00 1,066,710.00 101.92

10-310-4120 Sewer Service Charge PY 6,828.43 .00 .00 .00

10-310-4130 SSC LISRAP 10% Discount 4,359.00- 25,000.00- 25,000.00- 17.44

97.4918,918,322.0018,918,322.0018,444,299.86Total Sewer Use Charges:

Permits/Fees

10-330-4310 Permits and Inspection Fees 46,113.00 71,750.00 71,750.00 64.27

10-330-4313 Application Fees 7,000.00 3,400.00 3,400.00 205.88

70.6875,150.0075,150.0053,113.00Total Permits/Fees:

Property Taxes

10-340-4405 Property Tax - Current Secured 1,190,275.65 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 99.19

10-340-4410 Property Tax - Current Unsecur 19,274.68 29,409.00 29,409.00 65.54

10-340-4415 Prior Secured Redemption 189.12 .00 .00 .00

10-340-4420 Prior Unsecured 1,148.15 .00 .00 .00

10-340-4427 Supp. Assmnts - Prop Tax Curr 25,152.63 32,501.00 32,501.00 77.39

10-340-4428 Supp. Assmnts - Redemption 675.00 .00 .00 .00

10-340-4440 ERAF 442,428.07 507,904.00 507,904.00 87.11

10-340-4441 ERAF Prior Year 66,998.98 .00 .00 .00

98.661,769,814.001,769,814.001,746,142.28Total Property Taxes:

Franchise Fees

10-350-4510 Franchise Revenue 175,202.60 197,991.00 197,991.00 88.49

88.49197,991.00197,991.00175,202.60Total Franchise Fees:

Intergovernmental

10-360-4610 Federal and State Grants .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00

10-360-4620 HOPTR 4,223.64 2,371.00 2,371.00 178.14

57.307,371.007,371.004,223.64Total Intergovernmental:

Investment Income

10-370-4710 Bank Interest - Operations 152,591.03 2,340.00 2,340.00 6,520.98

10-370-4711 Interest - LAIF 462,164.55 396,000.00 396,000.00 116.71

10-370-4713 Interest on Bond Funds 6.92 4.00 4.00 173.00

10-370-4714 Interest on IBank ISRF 20,920.81 .00 .00 .00

10-370-4715 Interest on Reserves CD x6073 1,506.82 .00 .00 .00

10-370-4716 Interest - CAMP 290,761.50 .00 .00 .00

10-370-4717 Interest - CLASS 247,475.40 .00 .00 .00

295.08398,344.00398,344.001,175,427.03Total Investment Income:

Other Nonoperating

10-380-4881 PSL Prior Year (contra) 731.98 .00 .00 .00

10-380-4882 PSL Levy Principal 85,582.04 72,000.00 72,000.00 118.86

10-380-4885 Miscellaneous Income 43,020.54 15,285.00 15,285.00 281.46

Attachment G

109



Page: 2Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

10-380-4887 PSL Direct Pay Off 414.27 9,700.00 9,700.00 4.27

10-380-4888 PSL Investment Interest 6,725.89 425.00 425.00 1,582.56

10-380-4899 Passthru Reimbursmnt (Revenue) 11,514.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 46.06

120.90122,410.00122,410.00147,988.72Total Other Nonoperating:

Transfers In

10-390-4910 Transfer - I Bank Loan .00 567,760.00 567,760.00 .00

.00567,760.00567,760.00.00Total Transfers In:

Administration

10-400-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 924,685.57 825,300.00 825,300.00 112.04

10-400-5010 Overtime 9,932.68 10,500.00 10,500.00 94.60

10-400-5020 Doubletime 1,344.66 400.00 400.00 336.17

10-400-5060 Auto Allowance 5,469.46 5,900.00 5,900.00 92.70

10-400-5075 Certification Stipends 10,799.88 16,200.00 16,200.00 66.67

10-400-5077 Longevity Pay 8,091.92 6,700.00 6,700.00 120.77

10-400-5110 Health Insurance-Actives 126,037.71 110,100.00 110,100.00 114.48

10-400-5111 Health Insurance-Retirees 56,831.14 72,300.00 72,300.00 78.60

10-400-5112 Health Insurance-Admin Fee 504.08 1,700.00 1,700.00 29.65

10-400-5117 Dental Insurance 13,368.84 11,400.00 11,400.00 117.27

10-400-5119 Vision Services 706.40 4,400.00 4,400.00 16.05

10-400-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions 85,397.45 73,100.00 73,100.00 116.82

10-400-5129 GASB Pension Expense 700.00 .00 700.00 100.00

10-400-5130 Social Security Expense 62,181.41 58,000.00 58,000.00 107.21

10-400-5140 Workers Comp Insurance 114,994.00 156,200.00 156,200.00 73.62

10-400-5150 Group Life Insurance 10,586.89 10,100.00 10,100.00 104.82

10-400-5160 Long Term Disability 6,660.03 11,300.00 11,300.00 58.94

10-400-5170 Wellness Reimbursement Program 3,927.23 .00 3,000.00 130.91

10-400-5221 Office Supplies & Expense 29,529.15 31,200.00 31,200.00 94.64

10-400-5223 Meeting Supplies & Expense 3,637.28 2,700.00 2,700.00 134.71

10-400-5224 Damage Claims .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .00

10-400-5225 COVID-19 Expenses 916.77 .00 900.00 101.86

10-400-5229 Employee Recognition 1,010.42 7,600.00 4,600.00 21.97

10-400-5230 District Wellness Equip & Supp 2,249.98 .00 3,000.00 75.00

10-400-5233 Vehicle Gas Admin 35.45 500.00 500.00 7.09

10-400-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 1,884.43 1,600.00 1,600.00 117.78

10-400-5303 Payroll Processing Fees 25,264.20 24,900.00 24,900.00 101.46

10-400-5310 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 575.83 1,600.00 1,600.00 35.99

10-400-5315 Equipment Maintenance 239.24 100.00 100.00 239.24

10-400-5317 Equipment Repair .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00

10-400-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00

10-400-5331 Personnel & HR Services 27,484.29 105,100.00 100,500.00 27.35

10-400-5333 Janitorial 23,656.63 23,700.00 23,700.00 99.82

10-400-5335 Labor Relations 16,966.08 17,000.00 17,000.00 99.80

10-400-5337 General 11,036.94 19,300.00 19,300.00 57.19

10-400-5339 Other Outside Services 998.95 900.00 900.00 110.99

10-400-5342 Other Consultants 122,862.80 127,300.00 127,300.00 96.51

10-400-5347 Public Education 45,717.82 55,200.00 55,200.00 82.82

10-400-5351 Legal 133,795.71 183,600.00 183,100.00 73.07

10-400-5352 Legal MPFA 849.00 .00 500.00 169.80

10-400-5353 Audit 22,000.00 22,700.00 22,700.00 96.92

110



Page: 3Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

10-400-5355 Financial Services 24,460.00 35,400.00 35,400.00 69.10

10-400-5361 Consulting IT Services 28,409.35 31,000.00 31,000.00 91.64

10-400-5362 Incidental Software 27,099.88 10,900.00 10,900.00 248.62

10-400-5363 Multi-year SaaS Software Subsc 134.99 .00 .00 .00

10-400-5411 Insurance Gen Liab Property 335,808.57 315,800.00 315,800.00 106.34

10-400-5421 Internet Services 7,040.65 6,600.00 6,600.00 106.68

10-400-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 6,506.96 5,700.00 5,700.00 114.16

10-400-5431 Bank Charges 3,706.56 1,900.00 1,900.00 195.08

10-400-5433 Publications & Legal Ads 2,570.32 6,600.00 6,600.00 38.94

10-400-5439 Donations to non-profits 14,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 140.00

10-400-5451 Rents & Leases - Office & Equi 127,587.30 125,900.00 125,900.00 101.34

10-400-5453 Taxes, Other 466.00 1,400.00 1,400.00 33.29

10-400-5455 Permits and Fees 214.22 800.00 800.00 26.78

10-400-5457 User Chg / Collection Fee Exp. 731.98 38,300.00 38,300.00 1.91

10-400-5461 Memberships 42,128.71 38,000.00 38,000.00 110.87

10-400-5465 Conferences 21,021.69 13,200.00 13,200.00 159.26

10-400-5467 Mileage & Travel 1,853.93 4,500.00 4,500.00 41.20

10-400-5469 Employee Education & Training 1,433.10 10,900.00 10,900.00 13.15

10-400-5496 Fidelity Bond 2,371.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 215.55

10-400-9998 Credit Card Misc need receipts 18.17 .00 .00 .00

10-400-9999 Miscellaneous expense 469.25 200.00 200.00 234.63

95.572,679,800.002,679,800.002,560,962.95Total Administration:

Engineering

10-420-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 537,834.11 531,200.00 531,200.00 101.25

10-420-5060 Auto Allowance 5,216.15 4,800.00 4,800.00 108.67

10-420-5075 Certification Stipends 10,799.88 10,800.00 10,800.00 100.00

10-420-5077 Longevity Pay 28,307.37 23,500.00 23,500.00 120.46

10-420-5110 Health Insurance-Actives 66,450.99 60,800.00 60,800.00 109.29

10-420-5117 Dental Insurance 6,322.88 8,700.00 8,700.00 72.68

10-420-5119 Vision Services 520.78 800.00 800.00 65.10

10-420-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions 56,765.18 50,800.00 49,300.00 115.14

10-420-5130 Social Security Expense 35,710.34 28,500.00 28,500.00 125.30

10-420-5150 Group Life Insurance 1,597.48 1,200.00 1,200.00 133.12

10-420-5160 Long Term Disability 3,978.98 5,500.00 5,500.00 72.35

10-420-5170 Wellness Reimbursement Program 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 100.00

10-420-5221 Office Supplies & Expense 336.19 3,600.00 2,600.00 12.93

10-420-5223 Meeting Supplies & Expense .00 100.00 100.00 .00

10-420-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 856.75 600.00 850.00 100.79

10-420-5342 Other Consultants 102,052.00 169,900.00 169,900.00 60.07

10-420-5344 Passthru (Receivable Expense) 13,202.00 33,200.00 33,200.00 39.77

10-420-5361 Consulting IT Services 707.40 .00 450.00 157.20

10-420-5362 Incidental Software 2,019.76 1,300.00 2,300.00 87.82

10-420-5415 General Small Projects 10,173.02 24,000.00 20,000.00 50.87

10-420-5417 Feasibility Studies .00 89,600.00 89,600.00 .00

10-420-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 2,185.30 1,700.00 1,700.00 128.55

10-420-5433 Publications & Legal Ads 8,455.52 2,300.00 6,300.00 134.21

10-420-5455 Permits and Fees 399.00 100.00 100.00 399.00

10-420-5461 Memberships 540.99 1,500.00 1,500.00 36.07

10-420-5469 Employee Education & Training .00 4,400.00 4,400.00 .00

10-420-9999 Miscellaneous expense .00 3,500.00 2,800.00 .00

111



Page: 4Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

84.331,062,400.001,062,400.00895,932.07Total Engineering:

Board of Directors

10-440-5050 Director's Compensation 68,185.78 77,600.00 77,600.00 87.87

10-440-5115 Directors Health Benefits 10,851.60 10,900.00 10,900.00 99.56

10-440-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions 96.16- .00 .00 .00

10-440-5130 Social Security Expense 5,180.83 4,500.00 4,500.00 115.13

10-440-5221 Office Supplies & Expense 2,597.33 8,300.00 5,900.00 44.02

10-440-5223 Meeting Supplies & Expense 3,926.46 1,800.00 3,800.00 103.33

10-440-5229 Employee Recognition .00 800.00 800.00 .00

10-440-5331 Personnel & HR Services .00 11,800.00 11,800.00 .00

10-440-5342 Other Consultants .00 7,600.00 7,600.00 .00

10-440-5359 Election Expenses .00 25,300.00 25,300.00 .00

10-440-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 456.12 100.00 500.00 91.22

10-440-5461 Memberships .00 8,900.00 8,900.00 .00

10-440-5465 Conferences 16,986.08 34,400.00 34,400.00 49.38

10-440-5467 Mileage & Travel .00 500.00 500.00 .00

10-440-5469 Employee Education & Training 2,250.00 600.00 600.00 375.00

10-440-9999 Miscellaneous expense 2,291.62 5,000.00 5,000.00 45.83

56.85198,100.00198,100.00112,629.66Total Board of Directors:

Collection System

10-460-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 855,741.63 804,700.00 804,700.00 106.34

10-460-5010 Overtime 23,799.75 55,800.00 55,800.00 42.65

10-460-5020 Doubletime 10,782.77 5,300.00 5,300.00 203.45

10-460-5030 Stand By 47,303.28 45,100.00 45,100.00 104.89

10-460-5073 Emergency Response Stipend 23,999.56 27,900.00 27,900.00 86.02

10-460-5075 Certification Stipends 26,792.08 25,600.00 25,600.00 104.66

10-460-5077 Longevity Pay 43,840.83 36,900.00 36,900.00 118.81

10-460-5110 Health Insurance-Actives 134,408.40 100,200.00 100,200.00 134.14

10-460-5111 Health Insurance-Retirees 3,375.78 9,800.00 9,800.00 34.45

10-460-5117 Dental Insurance 7,900.22 17,800.00 17,800.00 44.38

10-460-5119 Vision Services 1,584.35 1,000.00 1,000.00 158.44

10-460-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions 108,688.44 90,200.00 90,200.00 120.50

10-460-5130 Social Security Expense 75,721.94 73,200.00 73,200.00 103.45

10-460-5150 Group Life Insurance 3,071.81 2,500.00 2,500.00 122.87

10-460-5160 Long Term Disability 7,334.13 10,100.00 10,100.00 72.62

10-460-5170 Wellness Reimbursement Program 3,500.00 .00 3,500.00 100.00

10-460-5211 General Operating Supplies 5,344.64 .00 4,600.00 116.19

10-460-5221 Office Supplies & Expense 1,831.90 9,300.00 4,700.00 38.98

10-460-5222 Small Tools 2,992.40 2,100.00 2,100.00 142.50

10-460-5231 Diesel Collections 9,268.65 9,100.00 9,100.00 101.85

10-460-5233 Vehicle Gas Collections 8,992.20 11,900.00 11,900.00 75.56

10-460-5234 Vehicle Natural Gas .00 1,900.00 1,900.00 .00

10-460-5235 Oil (vehicle and drum product) .00 300.00 300.00 .00

10-460-5241 Safety Contractor Services 56,743.57 59,100.00 59,100.00 96.01

10-460-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 15,284.56 23,100.00 23,100.00 66.17

10-460-5310 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 22,887.08 42,600.00 42,600.00 53.73

10-460-5311 Building Maintenance 2,112.41 41,800.00 41,800.00 5.05

10-460-5312 Grounds Maintenance 2,274.95 9,000.00 9,000.00 25.28

10-460-5315 Equipment Maintenance 43,112.38 15,500.00 15,500.00 278.14

112



Page: 5Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

10-460-5317 Equipment Repair 9,523.82 5,400.00 5,400.00 176.37

10-460-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement 2,993.49 .00 .00 .00

10-460-5334 Uniform Maintenance 14,126.73 7,800.00 7,800.00 181.11

10-460-5337 General .00 300.00 300.00 .00

10-460-5339 Other Outside Services 5,984.34 35,500.00 35,500.00 16.86

10-460-5342 Other Consultants .00 25,000.00 17,500.00 .00

10-460-5361 Consulting IT Services 5,639.50 12,000.00 12,000.00 47.00

10-460-5362 Incidental Software 13,125.97 2,000.00 2,000.00 656.30

10-460-5363 Subscription Software SaaS 63,436.40 45,600.00 45,600.00 139.11

10-460-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 7,169.74 6,300.00 6,300.00 113.81

10-460-5433 Publications & Legal Ads .00 600.00 600.00 .00

10-460-5441 Lateral Rehab Assistance Prog 42,984.81 60,500.00 60,500.00 71.05

10-460-5455 Permits and Fees 31,249.97 4,600.00 4,600.00 679.35

10-460-5461 Memberships 5,704.61 5,400.00 5,400.00 105.64

10-460-5465 Conferences .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00

10-460-5469 Employee Education & Training 3,460.00 17,000.00 13,500.00 25.63

10-460-9998 Credit Card Misc need receipts 96.83 .00 .00 .00

100.021,753,800.001,761,300.001,754,185.92Total Collection System:

Maintenance

10-480-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 594,468.78 672,800.00 646,300.00 91.98

10-480-5010 Overtime 4,908.19 400.00 400.00 1,227.05

10-480-5020 Doubletime 517.51 .00 .00 .00

10-480-5030 Stand By 26,668.17 .00 26,600.00 100.26

10-480-5033 COVID Leave .00 8,100.00 .00 .00

10-480-5073 Emergency Response Stipend 2,561.52 3,900.00 3,900.00 65.68

10-480-5075 Certification Stipends 25,527.14 18,900.00 18,900.00 135.06

10-480-5077 Longevity Pay 4,500.02 .00 5,500.00 81.82

10-480-5110 Health Insurance-Actives 76,598.24 70,700.00 70,700.00 108.34

10-480-5117 Dental Insurance 6,726.12 7,400.00 7,400.00 90.89

10-480-5119 Vision Services 642.81 900.00 900.00 71.42

10-480-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions 27,092.38 43,300.00 43,300.00 62.57

10-480-5130 Social Security Expense 46,445.39 41,500.00 41,500.00 111.92

10-480-5150 Group Life Insurance 2,216.52 1,700.00 1,700.00 130.38

10-480-5160 Long Term Disability 4,332.53 4,700.00 4,700.00 92.18

10-480-5170 Wellness Reimbursement Program 2,497.00 .00 2,500.00 99.88

10-480-5211 General Operating Supplies 3,040.32 900.00 900.00 337.81

10-480-5221 Office Supplies & Expense 1,270.42 2,600.00 2,600.00 48.86

10-480-5222 Small Tools 11,438.89 14,700.00 14,700.00 77.82

10-480-5232 Propane 49.20 400.00 400.00 12.30

10-480-5235 Oil (vehicle and drum product) 81.90 3,400.00 3,400.00 2.41

10-480-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 12,869.89 14,100.00 14,100.00 91.28

10-480-5301 Contract Personnel .00 10,800.00 7,800.00 .00

10-480-5310 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 15,166.57 6,300.00 6,300.00 240.74

10-480-5311 Building Maintenance 13,009.40 12,600.00 12,600.00 103.25

10-480-5312 Grounds Maintenance 15,697.02 4,900.00 4,900.00 320.35

10-480-5313 Power Generation Maint.&  Rep 1,060.19 13,900.00 13,900.00 7.63

10-480-5315 Equipment Maintenance 33,766.04 42,800.00 42,800.00 78.89

10-480-5317 Equipment Repair 24,087.44 114,100.00 74,100.00 32.51

10-480-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement 8,709.67 160,000.00 10,000.00 87.10

10-480-5337 General 397.00 .00 .00 .00

10-480-5339 Other Outside Services 3,744.11 54,700.00 54,700.00 6.84

113



Page: 6Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

10-480-5342 Other Consultants .00 20,900.00 13,400.00 .00

10-480-5361 Consulting IT Services 510.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 2.55

10-480-5362 Incidental Software .00 800.00 800.00 .00

10-480-5415 General Small Projects .00 400.00 400.00 .00

10-480-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 3,348.48 2,800.00 4,800.00 69.76

10-480-5461 Memberships 985.00 900.00 900.00 109.44

10-480-5465 Conferences 283.01- 1,600.00 1,600.00 17.69-

10-480-5469 Employee Education & Training 3,461.75 .00 1,000.00 346.18

82.861,180,400.001,377,900.00978,112.60Total Maintenance:

Pump Stations

10-500-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 12,807.32 .00 .00 .00

10-500-5211 General Operating Supplies 522.21 .00 .00 .00

10-500-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only .00 1,700.00 1,700.00 .00

10-500-5312 Grounds Maintenance 4,703.58 2,500.00 2,500.00 188.14

10-500-5315 Equipment Maintenance 1,300.04 4,200.00 4,200.00 30.95

10-500-5317 Equipment Repair 9,517.48 7,300.00 7,300.00 130.38

10-500-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement 83,701.87 .00 80,000.00 104.63

10-500-5342 Other Consultants .00 10,800.00 6,200.00 .00

10-500-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 20,404.67 23,200.00 42,800.00 47.67

10-500-5421 Internet Services 1,865.60 3,200.00 3,200.00 58.30

10-500-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 11,478.79 5,800.00 5,800.00 197.91

10-500-5425 Utility Power 174,611.61 136,300.00 136,300.00 128.11

10-500-5427 Water 7,003.60 4,200.00 4,200.00 166.75

10-500-5451 Rents & Leases - Office & Equi 1,491.26 27,200.00 27,200.00 5.48

10-500-5455 Permits and Fees .00 2,700.00 2,700.00 .00

101.64324,100.00229,100.00329,408.03Total Pump Stations:

Laboratory

10-560-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 255,279.45 222,200.00 222,200.00 114.89

10-560-5010 Overtime 5,000.19 9,500.00 9,500.00 52.63

10-560-5020 Doubletime 4,296.75 6,100.00 6,100.00 70.44

10-560-5030 Stand By 7,275.97 5,300.00 5,300.00 137.28

10-560-5073 Emergency Response Stipend 3,599.96 3,500.00 3,500.00 102.86

10-560-5075 Certification Stipends 5,399.94 5,400.00 5,400.00 100.00

10-560-5077 Longevity Pay 8,441.13 7,400.00 7,400.00 114.07

10-560-5110 Health Insurance-Actives 26,697.24 34,000.00 34,000.00 78.52

10-560-5117 Dental Insurance 1,730.62 200.00 200.00 865.31

10-560-5119 Vision Services 303.94 200.00 200.00 151.97

10-560-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions 16,667.22 15,100.00 15,100.00 110.38

10-560-5130 Social Security Expense 18,629.15 16,700.00 16,700.00 111.55

10-560-5150 Group Life Insurance 651.80 400.00 400.00 162.95

10-560-5160 Long Term Disability 2,197.13 2,300.00 2,300.00 95.53

10-560-5170 Wellness Reimbursement Program 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 100.00

10-560-5211 General Operating Supplies 1,430.70 21,300.00 18,300.00 7.82

10-560-5221 Office Supplies & Expense 5,412.85 3,600.00 6,600.00 82.01

10-560-5223 Meeting Supplies & Expense 27.75 .00 .00 .00

10-560-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 1,063.96 1,000.00 1,000.00 106.40

10-560-5284 Laboratory Supplies 28,568.88 36,500.00 36,500.00 78.27

10-560-5301 Contract Personnel .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .00

10-560-5310 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 986.89 200.00 1,200.00 82.24

114



Page: 7Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

10-560-5315 Equipment Maintenance 6,558.36 3,900.00 3,900.00 168.16

10-560-5317 Equipment Repair 824.31 2,200.00 2,200.00 37.47

10-560-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement .00 4,200.00 4,200.00 .00

10-560-5327 Pollution Prevention Contract 10,456.34 21,100.00 21,100.00 49.56

10-560-5329 Lab Contract Services 69,834.85 70,600.00 69,600.00 100.34

10-560-5337 General .00 300.00 300.00 .00

10-560-5339 Other Outside Services 1,874.43 1,800.00 1,800.00 104.14

10-560-5342 Other Consultants 2,820.65 9,400.00 9,400.00 30.01

10-560-5361 Consulting IT Services 60.00 .00 .00 .00

10-560-5362 Incidental Software .00 500.00 500.00 .00

10-560-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 925.30 1,500.00 1,500.00 61.69

10-560-5455 Permits and Fees 12,328.63 4,400.00 4,400.00 280.20

10-560-5461 Memberships 725.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 72.50

10-560-5465 Conferences 813.79 7,800.00 6,800.00 11.97

10-560-5467 Mileage & Travel .00 100.00 100.00 .00

10-560-5469 Employee Education & Training 80.00 4,100.00 4,100.00 1.95

95.38526,300.00526,300.00501,963.18Total Laboratory:

Reclamation

10-580-5312 Grounds and Pond Maintenance 6,906.69 122,000.00 122,000.00 5.66

10-580-5313 Power Generation Maint.&  Rep .00 400.00 400.00 .00

10-580-5315 Equipment Maintenance 1,411.75 1,200.00 1,200.00 117.65

10-580-5317 Equipment Repair 1,180.76 700.00 700.00 168.68

10-580-5323 Pasture Disk 192,937.84 121,400.00 121,400.00 158.93

10-580-5325 Sludge Inject & Land Applicati 57,067.10 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,853.36

10-580-5326 Marsh Pond Vegetation Removal .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .00

10-580-5337 General .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .00

10-580-5339 Other Outside Services 16,361.33 16,600.00 16,600.00 98.56

10-580-5342 Other Consultants 24,507.75 17,100.00 17,100.00 143.32

10-580-5417 Feasibility Studies .00 10,400.00 10,400.00 .00

10-580-5425 Utility Power 48,539.03 49,800.00 49,800.00 97.47

10-580-5433 Publications & Legal Ads .00 400.00 400.00 .00

10-580-5455 Permits and Fees 704.00 500.00 500.00 140.80

10-580-5720 Solar Power Purchase Agreement 67,959.05- .00 .00 .00

69.77403,700.00403,700.00281,657.20Total Reclamation:

Plant

10-600-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 1,075,383.58 1,047,200.00 1,047,200.00 102.69

10-600-5010 Overtime 74,153.80 69,000.00 69,000.00 107.47

10-600-5020 Doubletime 42,779.66 13,400.00 15,400.00 277.79

10-600-5030 Stand By 54,876.00 70,400.00 70,400.00 77.95

10-600-5033 COVID Leave .00 11,000.00 .00 .00

10-600-5060 Auto Allowance 5,216.15 700.00 5,700.00 91.51

10-600-5073 Emergency Response Stipend 25,961.10 29,800.00 29,800.00 87.12

10-600-5075 Certification Stipends 59,607.35 60,100.00 60,100.00 99.18

10-600-5077 Longevity Pay 32,704.61 28,700.00 28,700.00 113.95

10-600-5110 Health Insurance-Actives 210,832.17 209,600.00 209,600.00 100.59

10-600-5111 Health Insurance-Retirees 49,710.13 26,200.00 26,200.00 189.73

10-600-5117 Dental Insurance 14,512.38 16,100.00 16,100.00 90.14

10-600-5119 Vision Services 855.12 900.00 900.00 95.01

10-600-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions 155,101.09 125,400.00 125,400.00 123.69

115



Page: 8Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

10-600-5130 Social Security Expense 96,274.56 86,300.00 86,300.00 111.56

10-600-5150 Group Life Insurance 4,647.68 3,300.00 3,300.00 140.84

10-600-5160 Long Term Disability 13,597.13 9,100.00 9,100.00 149.42

10-600-5170 Wellness Reimbursement Program 4,391.61 .00 4,000.00 109.79

10-600-5211 General Operating Supplies 3,558.35 6,800.00 6,800.00 52.33

10-600-5221 Office Supplies & Expense 1,823.63 11,200.00 9,200.00 19.82

10-600-5222 Small Tools 5,383.45 2,400.00 4,400.00 122.35

10-600-5223 Meeting Supplies & Expense 61.82 1,200.00 1,200.00 5.15

10-600-5231 Diesel Plant 9,268.64 9,100.00 9,100.00 101.85

10-600-5232 Propane 2,166.79 8,300.00 8,300.00 26.11

10-600-5233 Vehicle Gas Plant 8,074.93 11,200.00 11,200.00 72.10

10-600-5241 Safety Contractor Services .00 900.00 900.00 .00

10-600-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 6,319.74 8,700.00 8,700.00 72.64

10-600-5281 Hypochlorite 427,200.04 536,600.00 536,600.00 79.61

10-600-5282 Bisulfite 230,450.24 203,600.00 203,600.00 113.19

10-600-5283 Miscellaneous Chemicals 70,830.87 69,300.00 69,300.00 102.21

10-600-5284 Laboratory Supplies 656.34 2,500.00 2,500.00 26.25

10-600-5301 Contract Personnel .00 4,100.00 4,100.00 .00

10-600-5310 Vehicle Parts & Repairs 1,708.42 4,700.00 4,700.00 36.35

10-600-5311 Building Maintenance 13,939.09 8,700.00 8,700.00 160.22

10-600-5312 Grounds Maintenance 25,181.21 17,300.00 17,300.00 145.56

10-600-5313 Power Generation Maint.&  Rep 12,107.21 11,700.00 11,700.00 103.48

10-600-5315 Equipment Maintenance 49,753.37 21,700.00 51,700.00 96.23

10-600-5317 Equipment Repair 26,376.94 16,500.00 26,500.00 99.54

10-600-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement 26,574.05 17,200.00 87,200.00 30.47

10-600-5327 Pollution Prevention Contract .00 500.00 500.00 .00

10-600-5334 Uniform Maintenance 13,708.97 7,700.00 7,700.00 178.04

10-600-5337 General 7,477.91 1,200.00 1,200.00 623.16

10-600-5339 Other Outside Services 18,938.82 15,200.00 15,200.00 124.60

10-600-5341 Environmental 89,221.06 139,300.00 139,300.00 64.05

10-600-5342 Other Consultants .00 50,100.00 30,500.00 .00

10-600-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 20,404.66 23,200.00 42,800.00 47.67

10-600-5361 Consulting IT Services 16,867.69 9,000.00 9,000.00 187.42

10-600-5362 Incidental Software 6,729.00 8,300.00 8,300.00 81.07

10-600-5421 Internet Services 269.59 1,200.00 1,200.00 22.47

10-600-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 9,711.36 15,100.00 15,100.00 64.31

10-600-5425 Utility Power 695,707.29 595,200.00 595,200.00 116.89

10-600-5427 Water 32,643.71 47,800.00 47,800.00 68.29

10-600-5433 Publications & Legal Ads 2,768.40 1,400.00 1,400.00 197.74

10-600-5455 Permits and Fees 66,215.80 70,400.00 70,400.00 94.06

10-600-5461 Memberships 11,485.10 12,200.00 12,200.00 94.14

10-600-5465 Conferences 7,877.44 12,700.00 12,700.00 62.03

10-600-5467 Mileage & Travel 1,151.79 100.00 100.00 1,151.79

10-600-5469 Employee Education & Training 1,050.94 8,300.00 8,300.00 12.66

98.323,909,800.003,799,800.003,844,268.78Total Plant:

Nondepartmental Contributions

10-670-5113 Health Insurance-OPEB Pre-fund 174,450.00 178,400.00 178,400.00 97.79

10-670-5120 PERS-Normal Contributions UAL 303,766.92 324,500.00 324,500.00 93.61

116



Page: 9Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

95.09502,900.00502,900.00478,216.92Total Nondepartmental Contributions:

Nondepartmental Debt Service

10-699-5511 2004 COP/Refunding  Principal 660,000.00 660,000.00 660,000.00 100.00

10-699-5512 IBank Principal 370,443.73 370,444.73 370,444.73 100.00

10-699-5513 State Revolving Fund Loan Prin 224,604.28 224,604.28 224,604.28 100.00

10-699-5514 2011Bank of Marin Loan Princip 280,075.80 247,186.20 247,186.20 113.31

10-699-5516 2017 Revenue Bonds Principal 1,155,000.00 1,155,000.00 1,155,000.00 100.00

10-699-5521 2004 COP/Refunding MF Interest 51,691.20 57,380.40 57,380.40 90.09

10-699-5522 IBank Loan Interest 180,346.25 313,134.07 313,134.07 57.59

10-699-5523 State Revolving Fund Loan Inte 55,788.49 60,860.17 60,860.17 91.67

10-699-5524 2011Bank of Marin Loan Interes 103,138.31 85,495.23 85,495.23 120.64

10-699-5526 2017 Revenue Bonds Interest 967,950.00 1,290,600.00 1,290,600.00 75.00

10-699-5552 Loan Annual Fees - IBank 31,869.07 31,869.07 31,869.07 100.00

90.764,496,574.154,496,574.154,080,907.13Total Nondepartmental Debt Service:

98.5922,057,162.0022,057,162.0021,746,397.13General Revenue Total:

92.8417,037,874.1517,037,874.1515,818,244.44General Expenditure Total:

118.115,019,287.855,019,287.855,928,152.69Total General:

117



Page: 10Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

Marin Lagoon

Marin Lagoon SSC Surcharge

20-310-4110 SSC Special Assessment-Current 24,750.00 24,750.00 24,750.00 100.00

100.0024,750.0024,750.0024,750.00Total Marin Lagoon SSC Surcharge:

Investment Income

20-370-4710 Bank Interest - Marin Lagoon 583.82 20.00 20.00 2,919.10

2,919.1020.0020.00583.82Total Investment Income:

Marin Lagoon Expenses

20-540-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 2,016.49 3,600.00 3,600.00 56.01

20-540-5312 Grounds Maintenance .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00

20-540-5317 Equipment Repair .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00

20-540-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00

30.556,600.006,600.002,016.49Total Marin Lagoon Expenses:

102.2824,770.0024,770.0025,333.82Marin Lagoon Revenue Total:

30.556,600.006,600.002,016.49Marin Lagoon Expenditure Total:

128.3318,170.0018,170.0023,317.33Total Marin Lagoon:

118



Page: 11Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Captain's Cove

Captain's Cove SSC Surcharge

30-310-4110 SSC Special Assessment-Current 16,000.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 100.00

100.0016,000.0016,000.0016,000.00Total Captain's Cove SSC Surcharge:

Investment Income

30-370-4710 Bank Interest - Captains Cove 263.06 5.00 5.00 5,261.20

5,261.205.005.00263.06Total Investment Income:

Captain's Cove Expenses

30-520-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 7,528.75 1,100.00 1,100.00 684.43

30-520-5315 Equipment Maintenance .00 700.00 700.00 .00

30-520-5317 Equipment Repair 1,839.33 1,900.00 1,900.00 96.81

30-520-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 83.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 7.55

196.904,800.004,800.009,451.08Total Captain's Cove Expenses:

101.6116,005.0016,005.0016,263.06Captain's Cove Revenue Total:

196.904,800.004,800.009,451.08Captain's Cove Expenditure Total:

60.7911,205.0011,205.006,811.98Total Captain's Cove:

119



Page: 12Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 1:43PM

Account Number

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
BudgetAccount Title

Earned
Expended

Percent

Connection Fees

Investment Income

40-370-4712 Interest Connection Fees CapX 32,292.86 1,733.00 1,733.00 1,863.41

1,863.411,733.001,733.0032,292.86Total Investment Income:

Connection Fees CapX

40-380-4820 Connection Fees CapX 447,261.24 870,286.00 870,286.00 51.39

51.39870,286.00870,286.00447,261.24Total Connection Fees CapX:

54.99872,019.00872,019.00479,554.10Connection Fees Revenue Total:

54.99872,019.00872,019.00479,554.10Total Connection Fees:

120



Page: 13Budget Worksheet - Current Year - Actual to Budget ComparisonLas Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

Period 07/23 (07/31/2023) - 13/24 (06/30/2024) Aug 08, 2024 2:01PM

Account Number Account Title

2023-24
Current year

Actual

2023-24
Adopted
Budget

2023-24
Revised
Budget

Earned
Expended

Percent

Recycled Water

Recycled Water Charges

60-320-4210 Recycled Water 151,271.46 165,400.00 165,400.00 91.46

91.46165,400.00165,400.00151,271.46Total Recycled Water Charges:

Investment Income

60-370-4715 Interest on RW CD x5679 3,007.40 100.00 100.00 3,007.40

3,007.40100.00100.003,007.40Total Investment Income:

Other Nonoperating

60-380-4830 MMWD Buy-in & Bond Share CapX 337,158.83 631,177.00 631,177.00 53.42

60-380-4840 RW Cap Repair & Replace 10% 51,563.03 .00 .00 .00

61.59631,177.00631,177.00388,721.86Total Other Nonoperating:

Recycled Water Expenses

60-620-5000 Regular Staff Salaries 10,836.16 27,500.00 27,500.00 39.40

60-620-5211 General Operating Supplies 43.63 5,400.00 5,400.00 .81

60-620-5284 Laboratory Supplies 652.68 3,200.00 3,200.00 20.40

60-620-5315 Equipment Maintenance 49.38 2,900.00 2,900.00 1.70

60-620-5317 Equipment Repair 4,910.30 2,000.00 2,000.00 245.52

60-620-5341 Environmental 16,156.69 24,600.00 24,600.00 65.68

60-620-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 20,404.68 23,200.00 23,200.00 87.95

60-620-5361 Consulting IT Services 7,648.91 14,000.00 14,000.00 54.64

60-620-5362 Incidental Software .00 1,900.00 1,900.00 .00

60-620-5423 Telephone and Cell Services 331.78 4,500.00 4,500.00 7.37

60-620-5610 RWCRRF 10% LGVSD Contribution 14,395.55 .00 .00 .00

69.07109,200.00109,200.0075,429.76Total Recycled Water Expenses:

68.16796,677.00796,677.00543,000.72Recycled Water Revenue Total:

69.07109,200.00109,200.0075,429.76Recycled Water Expenditure Total:

68.01687,477.00687,477.00467,570.96Total Recycled Water:

104.506,608,158.856,608,158.856,905,407.06Grand Totals:

121



Marin Lagoon ‐ True Up ‐ QUARTERLY TRANSFER 

Beginning balance 7/1/2023 10,537.74$         

Sewer Service Charge Revenue to Fund #5019 

Bank of Marin 

Balance Transfer  

on 8‐5‐24

FY 23‐24     (225 sewer units x $110) Dec 2023 from County (55%) 13,612.50$         Trns on 12/31/23

FY 23‐24     (225 sewer units x $110) April 2024 from County (40%) 9,900.00$            Trns on 5/31/24

FY 23‐24     (225 sewer units x $110) June 2024 from County (5%) pending trnsf 1,237.50$           

Sub‐total 23,512.50$       

Interest ‐ Estimated

7/1/23 to 4/30/24 465.56$             

5/1/24 to 6/30/24 118.26$              

Sub‐total 583.82$             

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses excld. Capital Repl. 7‐1‐23 to 4‐30‐24 (1,625.24)$         

Operating expenses excld. Capital Repl. 5‐1‐24 to 6‐30‐24 pending trnsf (277.13)$             

Capital Replacement Expenses 7‐1‐22 to 6‐30‐24 ‐$  

Sub‐total (1,625.24)$        

Capital Improvements Marin Lagoon PS #1  *

#4481 Marin Lagoon PS ‐ no new expenses, pay towards PY balance (20,000.00)$       

* Completed in 21‐22  but retention & incidentals paid 23‐24 ‐$  

Sub‐total (20,000.00)$      

Transfer from BoM Operating  to Marin Lagoon on 8/5/24 Total 960.37$              

JE Reclass #10‐310‐4110 to 20‐310‐4110 for $1,237.50 for June SSC

Ending Balance as of 6/30/2024 13,008.82$         

* Insufficient funding in Restricted Fund #5005

Restricted CIP Transaction Log Budget

Estimated Beginning CIP Balance as of 7/1/2023 (111,348.49)$     

Paydown of PY CIP PS#1 Project balance ‐ transfer to OPS (5/31/24) 20,000.00$        

Budget allocation of Marin Lagoon Funds for 2023‐2024 CIP 25,000.00$        

Estimated Ending CIP Balance due as of 6/30/24 (91,348.49)$        25,000.00$        

** Est. Balance of Marin PS #1 Upgrade CIP due FY 24/25 and beyond (91,348.49)$      

Q:\ACCOUNTING\QUARTERLY FINANCIALS\2023‐24\4th Qtr June\Marin Lagoon July 1 2023 to June 30 2024

Attachment H

122



Captains Cove ‐ True Up ‐ QUARTERLY TRANSFER

Beginning Restricted Cash Fund Balance 7/1/2023 3,657.06$           

Sewer Service Charge Revenue to Fund #5019 

Bank of Marin 

Balance Transfer 

on 8‐5‐24

FY 23/24   (160 condo units x $100) Dec 2023 from County (55%) 8,800.00$           Trnsfd on 12/31

FY 23/24   (160 condo units x $100) April 2024 from County (40%) 6,400.00$           Trns on 5/31/24

FY 23/24   (160 condo units x $100) June 2024 from County (5%) pending trnsf 800.00$                 

Sub‐total 15,200.00$       

Interest

July through April 213.71$             

May through June  49.35$               

‐$  

Sub‐total 263.06$            

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses excld. Capital Repl. 7‐1‐23 to 4‐30‐24 (9,255.47)$          Trns on 5/31/24

Operating expenses excld. Capital Repl. 5‐1‐24 to 6‐30‐24 pending trnsf (195.61)$                

Capital Replacement Expenses 7‐1‐23 to 6‐30‐24 ‐$  

Sub‐total (9,255.47)$        

Capital Improvements  April 1 to June 30, 2023

18350‐01 Captains Cove PS Upgrades (ATS excluded) * ‐$  

Duplex Controller PY Project Balance refund to BoM Ops (5/31/24) (7,461.96)$         

‐$  

Sub‐total (7,461.96)$         ‐$

Transfer from BoM Operating  to Captain's Cove on 8/5/24 604.39$                 

   JE reclass #10‐310‐4110 to 30‐310‐4110 for $800 for June SSC

Ending Fund Cash Balance as of 6/30/2024 2,402.69$          

Q:\ACCOUNTING\QUARTERLY FINANCIALS\2023‐24\4th Qtr June\Captains_Cove_July 1 2023 to June 30 2024

Attachment I

123



 

 
 

 

8/15/2024 
 

SOLAR PROJECT UPDATE 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM  3.5 

124



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\08152024\Board Policy Revisions\ASR Updating Board Policies F90 F100 O10 and adding F150.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Angela Beran, Grant Management and Procurement Specialist 

(415) 526-1517   aberan@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: August 15, 2024 
Re: Revisions and Additions to Board Policies to Reflect New Grant and Procurement 

Procedures and Staffing 
Item Type:  Consent  Action   Information      X Other             . 
Standard Contract:    Yes   No (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to consider revisions and updates to the following Board Policies: F-90-40 (Purchasing 
Authority), F-90-60 (Purchase Orders), F-100-10 (Board Oversight), F-100-30 (Limits on 
Purchases and Credit Card Limits), F-100-40 (Review), and O-10-30 (List of Purchases).  
Consider adding a new Board Policy section F-100-80 (Credit Card Rewards) and new Board 
Policy F-150 (Grant Management). 

BACKGROUND   
Board Policy Section F-90-40 (Purchasing Authority) identifies staff positions and their purchasing 
authority.  With the Grant Management and Procurement Specialist role recently being filled, staff 
recommend a purchase authority level of $5,000 for the new position.   

Board Policy Section F-90-60 (Purchase Orders) currently requires purchase orders for any 
purchases over $3,000.  To reduce the administrative burden, staff recommends increasing the 
threshold from $3,000 to $5,000.  As approval is required for all invoices, the requirement for 
purchase orders on lower threshold items duplicates the approval process with no additional 
benefit to the District.  

Board Policy Section F-100-10 (Board Oversight) currently authorizes the Board Vice President 
as the primary account holder for District credit card accounts.  Staff recommends replacing the 
Board Vice President’s authorization with the General Manager, consistent with Board Policy B-80 
which delegates to the General Manager “general authority over personnel matters and authority 
to administer the District,” which is in alignment with current practice. 

Board Policy Section F-100-30 (Limits on Purchases and Credit Card Limits) identifies credit card 
limits by staff positions.  With the Grant Management and Procurement Specialist role recently 
being filled, staff recommends a credit card limit of $5,000 for the new position.  Additionally, staff 
recommends revising and increasing the credit card limits of the Administrative/Financial 
Specialist and District Executive Assistant/Board Secretary roles from $5,000 to $7,5000.  
Further, staff recommends revising and increasing the credit card limit of the Administrative 
Assistant from $2,000 to $5,000. 

Item Number_______3.6_______ 
GM Review   ___CP___________ 

125

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\08152024\Board Policy Revisions\ASR Updating Board Policies F90 F100 O10 and adding F150.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
Board Policy Section F-100-40 (Review) identifies the Administrative/Financial Specialist as being 
responsible for the monthly credit card review process.  With the Grant Management and 
Procurement Specialist role recently being filled, management recommends revising and shifting 
this responsibility to the Grant Management and Procurement Specialist.   
 
Staff recommends adding a new Board Policy Section F-100-80 (Credit Card Rewards).  The 
intent of the new section is to clearly identify any rewards points, benefits, cash back bonus, or 
discounts resulting from the use of District issued Credit Cards shall be utilized solely for the 
benefit of the District, following all applicable laws, and not for individual gain. 
 
Staff recommends adding a new Board Policy Section F-150 (Grant Management).  The intent of 
the new policy is to establish the District’s authority for pursuing grants, authorizes the General 
Manager or designee to approve all grant application submittals, authorizes the Board to accept 
grant awards, identifies board reporting guidelines and grant application parameters.   
 
Finally, Board Operations Policy Section O-10-30 (List of Purchases) identifies applicable 
purchase to include in capital asset accounting based on the original total cost and useful life.  
Staff recommend increases to the capital threshold from $5,000 to $15,000. 
 
A redline version showing changes to the above referenced policies is provided for convenience. 
No other sections of Board Policies were revised with the exception of administerial changes.   
 
Comments received will be incorporated and brought back to the Board for approval by formal 
resolution at a future meeting. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On April 18, 2024, the Board adopted Resolution 2024-2326 revising Board Policy F-90.  
On October 6, 2022, the Board adopted Resolution 2022-2283 revising Board Policy F-100.  
On January 5, 203, the Board adopted Resolution 2023-2294 revising Board Policy O-10. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 
 
 
  
 
 

126



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    
 

F-90 PURCHASING, INCLUDING RETAINING CONSULTANTS 
 
Purpose 

This policy establishes procedures for preparing and approving purchase orders; and preparing, 
reviewing, and approving contracts. It also covers legal requirements, petty cash, limits on 
General Manager purchases, the required "paper trail," conformance with received orders, and 
consultant arrangements. 

 
F-90-10 Vendors for Small Items. To purchase small items -- such as office supplies, auto 
parts, and other miscellaneous items costing less than $2,000- the General Manager will set 
policies for selecting vendors. District accounts are awarded to firms at management discretion 
that support local businesses, enable the purchase of green and/or recycled products, as well 
as provide for competitive prices, discounts, service levels, and convenience. 

 
F-90-15  Petty Cash.  A Petty Cash fund shall be maintained in the District office having a 
balance-on-hand maximum of $500.00.  Petty cash may be advanced to District staff upon their 
request for the purpose of procuring item(s) or service(s) appropriately relating to District 
business. After said item(s) or service(s) have been obtained, a receipt for same shall be 
submitted to the Administrative Assistant or Administrative/Financial Specialist and any remaining 
advanced funds shall be returned.  The maximum petty cash advance shall be $100.00. No 
personal checks shall be cashed in the petty cash fund. The petty cash fund shall be included in 
the District's annual independent accounting audit. 

 
F-90-20 Out-of-Pocket Expenses. Whenever employees of the District incur "out-of-pocket" 
expenses for item(s) or service(s) appropriately relating to District business as verified by valid 
receipts, said expenses shall be reimbursed upon request from the District's petty cash fund or 
by check if needed.  In instances when a receipt is not obtainable, the requested reimbursement 
shall be approved by the Administrative Services Manager prior to remuneration. 

 
F-90-30  Quotations. To purchase items costing more than $2,000, written quotations will be 
solicited from vendors and received by email, fax, or mail. District Staff may approve purchase 
orders up to the amount of their purchasing authority per F-90-40. For purchases between $5,000 
and $15,000 three quotes will be obtained, unless the item is on the District's approved 
Summary of Specified Equipment List or replacement equipment is from a manufacturer's 
authorized dealer .  In cases where the General Manager determines that certain products may 
provide a better service life, durability, meet a specific need or provide greater efficiency than 
other products he/she has the authority to order that product or engage the service without 
multiple quotes. The General Manager also has the authority to utilize specific maintenance and 
repair vendors as he/she deems appropriate or necessary. 

 
F-90-35 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA). Public projects, as 
defined by the Act and in accordance with the limits listed in Section 22032 of the Public 
Contract Code, may be let to contract by informal procedures as set forth in Section 22032 , et 
seq. , of the Public Contract Code. Projects less than $60,000 may be performed by staff of the 
Agency, by force account with a contractor, by negotiated contract, or by use of a purchase 
order. (District Code Title 1 Chapter 7). 

 
 
 

Resolution 2024-2326xxx (Pending) Date Approved: April 18, 2024*** DRAFT *** 
President of the Board Last Reviewed and Approved: April 18, 2024 

127



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    
 
F-90-40 Purchasing Authority. The purchasing authority listed below shall apply except as 
authorized by separate Board action for specific construction projects. 

 
Position Authority 

Board of Directors No Limit 
General Manager • Construction and consultant contracts up to $60,000 

• Purchase Orders up to $60,000 
• Budgeted informally bid construction contracts 

between $60,001 and $200,000. (Per UPCCAA) 
Plant Manager Purchases up to $10,000. 
District Engineer Purchases and budgeted informally bid 

construction contracts up to $20,000 
Collection 
System/Maintenance/Safety 
Manager 

Purchases up to $10,000  

Administrative Services Manager Purchases up to $10,000 
District Executive Assistant/Board 
Secretary 

Purchases up to $5,000 

Administrative/Financial Specialist Purchases up to $5,000 
Grant Management and Procurement 
Specialist 

Purchases up to $5,000 

Assistant/Associate  Engineer Purchases up to $5,000 
Environmental Services Supervisor Purchases up to $7,500 
Plant Operations and  
Maintenance Supervisors 

Purchases up to $7,500 

Skilled Maintenance Worker I/II Purchases up to $1,000 
Administrative Assistant Purchases up to $1,000 

 
Formal construction bid contracts in excess of $60,000 must come to the Board for 
approval prior to execution. 

 
For purchases in excess of $15,000, staff will inform the Board of Directors regarding the 
item as soon as administratively feasible. 

 
F-90-50 Expense Authorization in the Absence of the General Manager. In the absence of 
the General Manager, two (2) managers may sign the purchase order for amounts in excess 
of $15 ,000.  The General Manager will approve the purchase order prior to payment. 

 
F-90-60  Purchase Orders. Purchases over $3,0005,000 require a purchase order to be 
issued prior to ordering. 

 
F-90-70 Disbursements.  The District requires that all disbursements be properly 
approved and authorized.  To ensure that internal control is maintained over cash 
disbursements the following procedures will be performed: 

• The General Manager can authorize payment of demands without prior approval by 
the Board if the District Treasurer determines the demands are payable within the 
District’s approved budget. 

 
Resolution 2024-xxx (Pending)2326 Date Approved: *** DRAFT ***April 18, 2024 
President of the Board Last Reviewed and Approved:  April 18, 2024 

128



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    

• Disbursements, whether by check or electronic transfer, shall be included on a 
Warrant List and presented to the Board at the next regular meeting for review. 
Invoices and related support documents will be available prior to and at the Board 
meeting for review, providing for additional Board oversight.  

• Demands exceeding the District’s approved budget shall be subject to Board approval 
before payment. 

• Disbursements made by check shall require two signatures for valid, documented and 
approved expenses by the District. Signing authority is to be granted by Resolution. 
Generally, checks drawn from the Operating bank account will be signed by the 
General Manager and Administrative Services Manager, who serves as the District 
Treasurer. Where either the General Manager or Administrative Services Manager is 
not available, a Board member may sign in place of the General Manager or the 
Administrative Services Manager, or two Board members may sign in place of the 
General Manager and the Administrative Services Manager. 

 
F-90-75  Intergovernmental Agreements. Agreements between two or more government 
agencies or non-governmental organizations (NGOs) regardless of purchase amount must be 
approved by the Board. 

 
F-90-80  Contract Execution. Regardless of expenditures and expense authorization levels, 
and unless otherwise authorized by the District Board, the Board (in the form of its President) 
and/or the General Manager shall remain the sole entities authorized to execute formal contracts 
on behalf of the District. Contracts shall include but not be limited to: Agreements with other 
governmental entities or NGOs; professional services agreements; construction, maintenance 
services, equipment procurement, and material supply contracts; and amendments thereof. 

 
F-90-90 Consultants. Consultants will be retained whenever in the judgment of the General 
Manager that there are not sufficient resources or expertise to accomplish a task. 

• Prospective consultants shall be selected from experienced, competent and reliable 
firms or individuals to provide the necessary resource. 

• For consulting expenditures below $60,000, consultants may be selected sole-source on 
the basis of their qualifications and ability. 

• For consulting procurements exceeding $60,000, a competitive process may be followed 
with emphasis on professional capability, availability to complete the task as well as cost. 
Professional Services Contracts over $60,000 shall be submitted to the Board for approval.  
However in the case where the Board deems it more prudent and in the best interest of 
continuity of services, a consultant contract may be awarded without a competitive 
process. 

• Regular reports of consultant's progress shall be reviewed by the General Manager and 
reported to the Board. 

 
F-90-95  Vehicles. Fleet vehicles should be purchased through cooperative purchasing 
agreements or statewide contract.  The Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund will be used to 
fund replacement vehicles and related equipment.  The Board shall authorize the purchase of 
vehicles as part of the budget process or by separate Board action if not budgeted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2024-xxx (Pending)2326 Date Approved: *** DRAFT ***April 18, 2024 
President of the Board Last Reviewed and Approved: April 18, 2024 

129



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    

F-100 CREDIT CARDS 
 

Purpose 
This policy establishes who gets credit cards, the controls over their use, repayment, and 
required documentation for employees for purchases of minor supplies and services on behalf of 
the District; paying for travel when on District business trips; and making small purchases as 
authorized in the Purchasing Policy. 

 
F-100-10  Board Oversight. The Board Vice-PresidentGeneral Manager  is authorized as the 
primary account holder who shall review statements of credit card transactions with supporting 
materials along with the warrant list. This Board member is not to use the credit card for 
purchasing. Per Board decision, on May 8, 2003 Board Members cancelled their credit cards. 

 
F-100-20  Distribution. Credit cards shall be provided to District Staff members as determined 
necessary for the position by the General Manager. The Board is to be notified of the issue of 
new cards in a timely matter. 

 
In order to maintain security over District issued credit cards, staff shall maintain possession of 
their District issued credit cards and not loan them to other staff for use. 

 
F-100-25  Responsibility. The primary responsibility for ensuring the appropriate use of credit 
cards lies with the Named Cardholder. The Named Cardholder is responsible for obtaining 
receipts and providing them to the Administrative/Financial Specialist monthly . 

 
The Department Head is responsible for (1) safeguarding against misuse of credit cards under 
control of their department staff; (2) implementing departmental procedures to ensure that 
purchases are appropriately reviewed, approved, and processed in a timely manner. 

 
F-100-30 Limits on Purchases and Credit Card Limits. Credit card purchases shall be 
limited to: 

 
• Budgeted District expenses and to certain vendor accounts. 
• District business related seminar and conference expenses to include lodging, travel, 

meals, conference registration, and other appropriate expenses. The Administrative 
Services Manager is to be notified if the credit card is to be used outside the District. 
This is done in order to notify the bank for security. 

• Meal expenses, as well as the meal expense of a guest if the breakfast/lunch/dinner 
meeting includes necessary discussion of District business with the guest. Excludes 
alcohol. 

• Spouse or guest expense under very limited circumstances and only when paying for the 
spouse or guest in another manner is difficult or cumbersome. Reimbursement to the 
District, accompanied by an expense receipt, shall be made in a timely manner. 

• Other instances deemed appropriate by the General Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2022-22832024-xxx (Pending) Date Approved: *** DRAFT ***October 6, 2022 
President of the Board Last Reviewed and Approved: October 6, 2022 

130



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    
 

Credit Card Limit   
General Manager Up to $20,000 
Plant Manager Up to $10,000 
District Engineer Up to $10,000 
Collection/Maintenance/Safety  Manager Up to $10,000 
Administrative  Services Manager Up to $10,000 
Administrative/Financial Specialist Up to $ 7,500 
District Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Up to $ 7,500$  

5,000 
Administrative/Financial  Specialist Up to $ 5,000 
Grant Management and Procurement Specialist Up to $ 5,000 
Assistant/ Associate  Engineer Up to $ 5,000 
Environmental Services Supervisor Up to $ 5,000 
Plant Operations Supervisor Up to $ 5,000 
Maintenance Supervisor Up to $ 5,000 
District Administrative  Assistant Up to $ 5,000$  

2,000 
Selected Plant, Collections and Maintenance Workers Up to $  1,200 

 
F-100-40  Review. The Grant Management and Procurement Specialist Administrative/Financial  
Specialist is to provide monthly statements to each Named Cardholder, collect receipts from 
each Named Cardholder and reconcile them to credit card transactions on a timely basis.  The 
Administrative Services Manager shall review credit card purchases and determine the adequacy 
of receipts. The General Manager  shall be provided credit card statements, receipts, and 
summary report for final review. 

 
F-100-50  Revocation. A majority vote of the Board is required to revoke the use of a card by 
the General Manager. The General Manager may revoke the use of a credit card by an 
employee. 

 
F-100-60  Prohibitions. Unauthorized use of a credit card or use of a credit card for personal 
purchases is strictly prohibited. The unauthorized use shall be reimbursed to the District by the 
employee before continuation of the use of the credit card will be allowed. 

 
F-100-70  Use of Personal Credit Cards for District Business. Employees who are issued 
District credit cards are required to use them for District business unless administratively 
unfeasible. 

 
Employees who do not have District issued credit cards may use personal cards to pay for travel 
expenses, emergency purchases and incidental items related to District business up to 
$2,500 per event. 

 
Use of personal credit cards for District purchases other than outlined above requires prior 
approval by the General Manager or will not be paid by the District. 
 
F-100-80  Credit Card Rewards Points and/or Card Use Benefits. Any reward points, benefits, 
cash back bonus or discounts, if applicable, shall be utilized solely for the benefit of the District. Use 
of any such reward points, benefits, cash back bonus or discounts shall follow all applicable laws. 
No reward points, benefits, cash back bonus or discounts shall be utilized for individual gain. 

 
Resolution No. 2022-22832024-2024-xxx 
(P di ) 

Date Approved: *** DRAFT ***October 6, 
2022 President of the Board Last Reviewed and Approved: October 6, 
2022 

131



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    
 

F-150 GRANT MANAGEMENT 
 

Purpose 
This policy establishes authority for the District for the application, acceptance, and reporting of 
grants. This policy shall be approved by Board resolution and applies to all grants for which the 
District may apply. 
 
A grant is an external funding source that is awarded for a specific purpose, is valid within a 
defined timeframe, and typically imposes contractual obligations on the District.  The method of 
grant disbursement is determined by the granting agency and the use of the funds is generally 
subject to audit by the granting agency. 
 
It is the objective of the District to affirmatively seek grant funding opportunities that add to the 
District’s financial resources to help maintain and provide quality service and capital 
improvements for residents and businesses in the service area. 
 
F-150-10 General Manager Authorization.  All grant application submittals must be 
approved by the General Manager or designee. 
 
Based on the following circumstances, Board delegates to the General Manager the ability to approve 
submittal of a grant if: 
 

• The Board has a policy, goal, or plan in place supporting the program the funds would be used 
for. 

• The grant or application does not require any staff time, other than that of the Grant 
Management & Procurement Specialist, and which will not be funded by the grant or program 
applied for. 

• The grant or application does not require any additional District funds not already budgeted for 
this purpose and which falls under the purchasing authority of the General Manager. 

 
Board approval must be obtained to apply for a grant that does not meet the conditions set forth 
above or if the granting agency requires governing body approval before applying for a grant. 
 
When considering the submittal of a grant application, the General Manager will consider the 
grant application parameters referenced at the end of this policy. In addition, the General 
Manager is authorized to accept or rejected all grant awards that do not fall under Board 
authorization described in the following section. 
 
F-150-20 Board Authorization.  Board approval for acceptance of grant awards is required 
when any of the following apply: 

• Funding for the project is not already approved in the amended operating or capital budgets. 
• Funds will be used to purchase or lease real property. 
• The District acts as a fiscal agent for another agency. 
• Appropriation of additional funds to serve as matching funds is required. 
• The granting agency requires governing body approval. 

 
F-150-30 Board Reporting Guidelines.  The Administrative Services Manager or designee 
will report to Board as follows: 

 
• As part of the Quarterly Financial Reports, staff will include the following for all active grants 

and grants closed-out during the fiscal year: 
• Purpose of the grant 
• Granting agency 
• Grant amount awarded 
• Grant amount spent 
• Grant amount remaining 
• Grant term/period of performance 

 132



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    

F-150-40 Grant Application Parameters.   
1. The minimum dollar amount of the solicitation of grant funds from both Federal/State 

government agencies and private agencies should generally be the following: 
a. Federal $1,000,000 
b. State $500,000 
c. Private and Other Local Public Agencies $5,000 

When grant opportunities arise that have funding available below the minimum thresholds 
identified above, the General Manager or designee are authorized to determine if it is still 
in the best interest of the District and their resources to move forward with preparing and 
submitting a grant application. 

2. Amounts under this minimum should be considered only if there are minimal 
administrative tasks (i.e., financial/project reporting, maintaining receipts, vouchers, etc.) 
imposed on the District by the grantor. 

3. Program and projects proposed for grant funding should be those that are consistent with 
the District’s Mission, Vision and Strategic Goals as identified as part of the District’s 
Strategic Plan, Integrated Wastewater Master Plan, or similar planning documents. 

4. Grant programs must comply with rules established by the granting agency.  If the 
requirements by the granting agency conflict with District policies, the granting agency 
requirements prevail.  No grant may be accepted if grant program requirements conflict 
with state or federal law or with any District ordinance. 

5. The submission of a grant application does not commit the District to appropriating match 
funds or funds for ongoing costs not covered by the grant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2024-XXXX Date Approved: *** DRAFT ***MONTH XX, 
2024 President of the Board Last Reviewed: MONTH XX, 2024NEW 

 

133



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
    
OPERATIONS 
O-10 CAPITAL ASSET ACCOUNTING CONTROLS 

 
Purpose 
This policy establishes procedures for accounting controls, inventory of facilities and equipment, 
assignment of value, depreciation, and maintenance procedures. 

 
O-10-10  Accurate Financial Reports. The purpose of this policy is to ensure proper accounting 
control resulting in the maintaining of accurate financial reports of capital assets. 

 
O-10-20  Report to Board. An accounting of all capital assets shall be conducted on an 
annual basis. 

 
O-10-30  List of Purchases. Applicable purchases for inclusion in said accounting shall be 
the following: 

• Equipment, tools , and vehicles that individually have an original total cost basis of 
more than $15,000 and a useful life greater than one year 

• All land and building acquisitions regardless of price; and, 
• Additions or major improvements to the District's service infrastructure. 

 
O-10-40  Recordkeeping. Permanent inventory records shall be maintained in either a paper file or 
electronic (computer data base) format. Said records shall be updated whenever a change in the 
status of a particular capital asset occurs (e.g., original purchase, sale, destruct ion, loss, theft, etc.). 

 
O-10-50  Inventory Requirements. Information to be maintained in said inventory records 
shall include at least the following: 

• Asset number 
• Description 
• Manufacturer's serial number 
• Storage location 
• Original cost 
• Acquisition date 
• Life expectancy 
• Classification code (e.g., office equipment, vehicle, etc.) 

 
O-10-60 Administrative Policies and Procedures. The General Manager and Administrative 
Services Manager shall develop internal capital asset policies and procedures necessary for 
establishing and maintaining internal controls to achieve the objectives of effective and efficient 
operations, reliable financial reporting, and compliance with laws and regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2024-2024-xxx2023-2294 Date Approved: *** DRAFT ***January 5, 2023 
President of the Board Last Reviewed and Approved: December 15, 

2022 
 

134



 

 
 

 

8/15/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports 
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
 

NITZBERG 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc 
Committee, SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Development Ad Hoc 
Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 5A 
                                                                                 DATE: August 15, 2024             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

194



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\08152024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

8/15/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 5B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253


	Agenda 08152024
	1 Public Comment
	2A Minutes 07182024
	2B Check Warrant Lists through 08052024
	2C Board Compensation July 2024
	2D Murray Wastewater Operation Basics
	2E Award of Contract IWMP Phase 3 Amendment 2
	3.1 Marin Sanitary Service Area Annual Report
	3.2 General Manager Report
	3.3 Administrative Services Dept Report
	3.4 4th QTR Treasurer's Report June 2024
	Treasurer's Report 4th Quarter June 30 2024.pdf
	1_4th QTR Treasurers Report June 2024
	2_CD 715679
	3_CD 716073
	4_LAIF Quarterly Interest 6-30-24
	5_California Class 4 April 30 2024 Statement
	6_California Class 5 May 31 2024 Statement
	7_California Class 6 June 30 2024 Statement
	8_CAMP Statement 4 April 30 2024
	9_CAMP Statement 5 May 31 2024
	10_CAMP Statement 6 June 30 2024
	12_Marin Lagoon July 1 2023 to June 30 2024
	13_Captains_Cove_July 1 2023 to June 30 2024


	3.5 Solar Project Update
	3.6 Revisions and Additions to Board Policies F90 F100 O10 and adding F150
	ASR Updating Board Policies F90 F100 O10 and adding F150
	F-90 F-100 O-10 Redline and F-150 New
	F-90 PURCHASING, INCLUDING RETAINING CONSULTANTS
	F-100 CREDIT CARDS
	F-150 GRANT MANAGEMENT
	OPERATIONS
	O-10 CAPITAL ASSET ACCOUNTING CONTROLS



	4 Board Member Reports
	4.2 Murray Other Reports
	5A Board Member Meeting Attendance Requests
	5B Board Agenda Item Requests
	6 Various Industry Articles



